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Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present to our shareholders the
annual report of Softpower International Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2015.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The revenue of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015 increased to HK$611.5 million from
HK$553.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2014, representing an increase of approximately
10.4%. The gross profit margin was approximately
27.1% for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014:
24.9%). The profit attributable to equity shareholders
was approximately HK$34.0 million for the year under
review, representing an increase of approximately
56.7% over the previous year of approximately
HK$21.7 million. Basic earnings per share was HK2.55
cents (2014: HK1.63 cents).

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors of the Company does not
recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

2015 marked another year of growth in revenue and
net profit to the Group. Despite the fierce market
competition, we managed to deliver the positive
contribution to the Group. In the year under review, the
Group reported a revenue of HK$611.5 million from
our core business of pipes and fittings, a 10.4% year-
on-year increase. The increase in revenue of the Group
was mainly driven by the favorable market condition in
Hong Kong and Macau in 2015. The market demand
for the supply of building materials remained strong.
Benefitting from the casinos expansion and resort
hotels projects in Macau as well as Tai Po Water
Treatment Project in Hong Kong, our pipes and fittings
business continued to grow.
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Chairman’s Statement
EREHRE

Over the past six decades, our flagship subsidiary, Bun
Kee (International) Limited, has become a one-stop
supplier of a comprehensive range of pipes and fittings.
Whenever the customers need the products, we can
procure for them. We have gained the confidence and
satisfaction from our customers. As a service-oriented
supplier and we had proven track record in terms of
procurement and distribution of pipes and fittings, the
Group showed its leading position in supplying pipes
and fittings in Hong Kong and Macau. We believe
that the Group will continue to have outstanding
performance.

For the year under review, most of our delivery
orders to the casinos expansion and resort hotels
projects in Macau have been completed. The existing
infrastructure projects in Hong Kong are also to be
completed in the near future. Although some public
sector projects have been delayed due to the project
funding issue from the Hong Kong Legislative Council,
our delivery orders to the private sector could also be
completed as scheduled.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Due to the project funding issue from the Hong Kong
Legislative Council, some of public sector projects have
been delayed. However, in view of the Hong Kong
Government’s long term housing strategy in increasing
land and housing supply, both private and public sector
projects will continue to be active.

Given the competitive and the challenging operating
environment in the coming year, we will continue to
adopt the prudent cost management approach. We
need to manage our warehouse cost and we are
constantly thinking of ways to meet customer needs on
time and further streamlining our operating efficiency.
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We will remain vigilant against the market volatility and
prudence in today’s ever-changing environment. To
keep our sustainable growth, it is important that we
stay close to our customers and strengthen our core
competencies through continuous improvements in
products quality.

Going forward, the Group remains confident of its
outlook for its core business of pipes and fittings
and will continue to explore new business growth
opportunities.

APPRECIATION

| would like to take this opportunity to express my
deepest appreciation to our shareholders, customers,
suppliers and banks for their continuous support. |
would also like to thank our Directors, management
team and employees for their valuable contribution and
dedication to the Group over the years. Your dedicated
support is the driving force behind our achievements.

Lai Guanglin
Chairman
Hong Kong, 30 March 2016
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Mission and Strategy
{s o K 3 B

The Group commenced its business in 1949 as a
pipe’s retail shop. Now the Group has developed into
a sizeable company and become a listed company on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited on 21 December 2000. We root in Hong Kong
over 65 years and are the mainstay of the industry.

The principal business of the Group is the importing
and selling of a comprehensive range of pipes, fittings
and other related accessories of different materials,
applications and brandnames in Hong Kong by Bun
Kee (International) Limited (“Bun Kee”). Sales of the
Group’s products are conducted either by wholesale or
retail sale. We offer quality goods storage and logistic
services for local main contractors and landlords.
Throughout the years, the Group has supplied quality
piping materials to many landmark projects in Hong
Kong, Macau and Mainland China.

The mission of the Group is to provide high quality
products to the customers and serve with value-added
and excellent customer services.

In attaining the above, we provide “one-stop-shop”
platform that provides high quality and a variety of
pipes and fittings that readily available to our customers
in ways that meet their needs and exceed their
expectations.

Whenever you think pipes and fittings, think Bun Kee.

Softpower International Limited BHEBERAF
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND FINANCIAL
PERFORMANCE

The Group is a leading provider to the construction
sector offering a wide range of pipe (including copper
tube, stainless steel and steel pipes), related products,
fittings, comprehensive services and solutions to the
contractors, designers, consultants and government
agencies in Hong Kong and Macau.

In 2015, the Group achieved encouraging results.
Riding on the efforts of our sales team, we achieved
a strong business growth of pipes and fittings and
gained good performance on sales and profit. For the
year ended 31 December 2015, the Group recorded a
growth of 56.7% year-on-year on profit attributable to
shareholders to HK$34.0 million which was achieved
on the back of a revenue of HK$611.5 million,
representing an increase of 10.4% year-on-year. The
growth momentum of revenue was primarily due to the
contribution from sales to Macau and favorable public
and private construction projects in Hong Kong during
the year.

During the year under review, the incident of lead in
drinking water in Hong Kong in July 2015 (“Lead Water
Case”), which has brought attention to the public
health awareness and resulting to new regulatory
requirements on the quality of pipes and fittings for
the industry. The Lead Water Case brought a mixture
of crisis and opportunities to the Group. Although it
will increase the cost on quality inspection of pipe
and fittings and we need to put in more resources to
enforce quality control of pipes and fittings, we will
uphold our core value of providing high quality products
and value-added services. Our competitive advantages
are that we have a good track record and commitment
to providing high-quality products. Therefore, we can
secure additional orders from the contractors in relation
to the replacement projects of the drinking water
pipes. to the certain public housing estates which were
affected by the Lead Water Case.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THBMWESH

The Group’s selling and distribution costs were
approximately HK$23.2 million in 2015 (2014: HK$19.0
million), representing an increase of about 22.1% year-
on-year. The increase was mainly attributable to the
increase in consultancy fees, transportation costs
for sales to Macau, wages and sales commission.
The Group’s general and administrative expenses
amounted to approximately HK$101.0 million in 2015
(2014: HK$90.4 million), representing an increase of
about 11.7% year-on-year. Such increase was primarily
attributable to the general increase in staff costs, rental,
testing fees, depreciation and bad debt provision.

Other net losses were about HK$1.9 million in 2015
(2014: HK$1.9 million). It was mainly attributable to
the exchange loss as Renminbi depreciated during
the year. Finance income was fairly stable and finance
costs decreased due to the increase in cash inflows
and early settlement of bank loans respectively. As a
result, our average amount of outstanding trade loans
decreased and net finance costs of the Group were
insignificant in 2015, as compared to approximately
HK$319,000 in 2014.

OUTLOOK

Moving forward, with our well established track record
and experienced management, we are expecting
to capture greater market share in the construction
market in Hong Kong. In addition, we will continue
to seek right opportunities for the Group to grow
and develop further. The Group remains cautiously
optimistic about the outlook of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2015, the cash and bank balances
of the Group were approximately HK$215.4 million
(2014: HK$190.4 million) including pledged bank
deposits, which amounted to HK$61.0 million (2014:
HK$68.7 million).
capital requirement has been financed by its internal

Basically the Group’s working

resources. The funds generated from operations and
the available banking facilities will enable the Group to
meet its future working capital requirements.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had aggregate
banking facilities of trade finance of approximately
HK$238.4 million (2014: HK$179.9 million),
approximately HK$84.9 million (2014: HK$83.9 million)
was utilised. The Group’s total borrowings stood at
approximately HK$73.0 million (2014: HK$76.0 million),
the entire amount of borrowings for both years end will
mature within one year.

The entire amount of borrowings outstanding as at 31
December 2015 was approximately HK$73.0 million
(2014: HK$76.0 million). 29% (2014: 34%) and 71%
(2014: 66%) of borrowings were subject to floating and
fixed rates respectively.

The gearing ratio as measured by total bank
borrowings to total equity was approximately 19.0% as
at 31 December 2015 (2014: 21.6%).

As at 31 December 2014 and 2015, the entire amount
of the Group’s borrowings was denominated in Hong
Kong dollars.

The Group conducts its business transactions mainly in
Hong Kong dollar, Macau Pataca, Renminbi and United
States dollar. In order to manage foreign exchange
risk, the Group has been closely monitoring its foreign
currency exposure and will arrange for any hedging
facilities if necessary.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THBMWESH

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2015, certain bank deposits held
by subsidiaries of the Group with an aggregate carrying
amounts of approximately HK$61.0 milion (2014
HK$68.7 million) were pledged to banks for banking
facilities.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2014 and 2015.

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had outstanding
commitments in respect of future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable lease of approximately
HK$34.1 million (2014: HK$47.9 million).

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had outstanding
commitments in respect of acquisition of motor
vehicles of approximately HK$1.3 million (2014 Nil).

STAFF AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2015, the Group employed a total
of 172 employees (2014: 160). Total employee benefit
expenses for the year ended 31 December 2015 was
approximately HK$69.0 million (2014: HK$63.5 million).

Softpower International Limited BHEBERAF
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Remuneration policy is reviewed annually and certain
staff members are entitled to sales commission. In
addition to the basic salaries and contributions to
the mandatory provident fund, the Group also pays
discretionary bonus and provides staff with other
benefits including medical scheme to the employees
in Hong Kong. The Group contributes to an employee
pension scheme established by the PRC Government
which undertakes to assume the retirement benefit
obligations of all existing and future retired employees
of the Group in Mainland China. The Group adopted
a share option scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to motivate the eligible directors
and employees of the Group in recognition of their
contributions to the Group.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREBARCEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lai Guanglin, aged 52, was appointed as
a director and the Chairman of the board of the
directors of the Company in February 2009. He is
also the Chairman of the Nomination Committee
and a member of the Remuneration Committee of
the Company. The Company is a leading provider to
the construction sector offering a wide range of pipe
related products, fittings, comprehensive services and
solutions to the contractors, designers, consultants
and government agencies in Hong Kong and Macau.
Mr. Lai’'s wholly owned investment vehicle, Singapore
Zhongxin Investment Company Limited, is the majority
shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Lai is the founder and the Chairman of the board
of directors of Agria Corporation which is listed on
the New York Stock Exchange. Agria Corporation
is primarily engaged in research and development,
production and sale of crop seeds to the agricultural
sector in Australia, New Zealand, China and South
America and the provision of rural services to the
farmers in New Zealand and South America. Agria
Corporation operates the Southern Hemisphere’s
largest forage seed business in New Zealand. The
activities in forage seeds and rural services are carried
out by PGG Wrightson Limited (“PGW”) which is a
subsidiary of Agria Corporation. PGW is a company
listed on the New Zealand Stock Exchange. Mr. Lai
was appointed as a director of PGW in December 2009
and as the Chairman of the Board of the Directors
of PGW in October 2013. Mr. Lai’'s wholly owned
investment vehicle, Brothers Capital Limited, is Agria
Corporation’s largest shareholder.

Mr. Lai has extensive experience in investments,
acquisitions and operation management. Mr. Lai has
established many other enterprises in China, Hong
Kong and internationally, in particular, animation,
logistics and transportation, pharmaceutical sectors,
etc. He takes a leading role in respect of strategic
planning and business development in his investment
portfolio.
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Mr. Lai is the Vice Chairman of Shenzhen General
Chamber of Commerce in China and the Vice
Chairman of Chinese Chamber of Commerce in New
Zealand.

Mr. Lai holds Bachelor's degree in accounting from
Monash University, Melbourne, Australia and a Master
of business administration in finance from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow certified public
accountant in Australia. Mr. Lai is a Fellow of Monash
University and also the member of Global Advisory
Council of Faculty of Business and Economics, Monash
University.

Mr. Lai is the elder brother of Mr. Lai Fulin, an Executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Lai is the sole director of
Singapore Zhongxin Investment Company Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company which has an
interest in the shares of the Company that is required
to be disclosed under Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance.

Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng, aged 51, was appointed as
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company in May 2009. Mr. Yu is responsible for
managing overall daily operations of the Group and the
implementation of the Group’s development strategies.

Mr. Yu has over 20 years of experience in investment
management, investment banking and general
management of listed companies. Mr. Yu began his
career at Mackenzie Financial Corporation in Toronto,
Canada as an investment analyst in 1989 and since
then, he has served several major financial corporations
including J.P. Morgan, Deutsche Bank and CITIC
Capital. In addition to his vast investment banking and
management experience, Mr. Yu has also managed
listed companies such as New World Cyberbase
Limited and Asia Logistics Holdings Limited in Hong
Kong. During his past career, Mr. Yu has focused
on direct investment and mergers and acquisitions
activities in sectors including construction materials,
infrastructure, energy, technologies, media and financial
services.
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EEREREBARCEE

Mr. Yu holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in English
Literature from the Beijing Foreign Studies University, a
Master of arts degree in Education from the University
of Toronto and a master's degree in business
administration from the University of Western Ontario,
Canada.

Mr. Yu is a director of King Jade Holdings Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company which has an
interest in the shares of the Company that is required
to be disclosed under Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance.

Mr. Lai Fulin, aged 50, was appointed as Executive
Director of the Company in October 2009. Mr. Lai
is Head of Production & Purchasing of the Group
and mainly responsible for the overall operation and
management of the production and purchasing
department. Mr. Lai has over 20 years of experience
in the banking sector, investments management and
general management of companies in China. Mr. Lai
worked in the Bank of China in Shenzhen during 1986
to 2001. During 1995 to 2001, he was the deputy
general manager of a subsidiary of Bank of China
dealing with businesses in the securities industry.
During 2002 to 2008, Mr. Lai was the general manager
of Shenzhen Huao Guanli Technologies Company
Limited CRINTHERBE HEHREEX AR AF). Mr. Lai
holds a certificate of graduation in Chinese Language

o

from Shenzhen Institute of Education G324 A £67) .
Mr. Lai is the younger brother of Mr. Lai Guanglin, the

controlling shareholder, the Chairman and Executive
Director of the Company.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. U Kean Seng, aged 49, was appointed as
Non-executive Director of the Company in February
2009. He is also a member of the Audit Committee
of the Company. Mr. U has more than 18 years of
experience in legal practice. Mr. U specialises in the
area of corporate law and corporate finance. Mr.
U was admitted to the Supreme Court of Victoria,
Australia in 1991, the Singapore Bar in 1993 and
the Roll of Saolicitors for England and Wales in 2009.
Mr. U holds a bachelor’'s degree in economics and
a bachelor’'s degree in laws (Honours) from Monash
University, Australia. Mr. U currently holds the
professional appointment as the Head of Corporate
and Legal Affairs of Agria Corporation, a company
listed on the New York Stock Exchange. Brothers
Capital Limited, an investment vehicle wholly-owned
by Mr. Lai Guanglin, is the largest shareholder of Agria
Corporation. Mr. U was appointed as a director of
PGG Wrightson Limited, a company listed on the New
Zealand Stock Exchange, on 4 December 2012. Mr. U
served as an independent director of GRP Limited, a
company listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”), from 7 June 2004 to 31
December 2012 and served as an independent director
of Miyoshi Precision Limited, a company listed on the
SGX-ST, from 13 February 2004 to 27 December
2013.
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EEREREBARCEE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson, aged 48, was
appointed as Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company in February 2009. He is also the
Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company.
Mr. Wong is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and member
of Australia CPA and Australian Institute of Banking
and Finance. He holds a master of commerce degree,
specializing in banking and finance from the University
of New South Wales. With more than 20 years of
experience in PricewaterhouseCoopers and Ernst and
Young, Mr. Wong specializes in the area of auditing
banks and listed companies. Mr. Wong is currently the
chief financial officer of China Animation Characters
Company Limited (Stock code: 1566, a company listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited “HKSE”)
and an independent non-executive director of Ping An
Securities Group (Holdings) Limited (Stock code: 231,
a company listed on HKSE). Mr. Wong had served as
an independent non-executive director of PanAsialum
Holdings Company Limited (Stock code: 2078, a
company listed on HKSE) from 18 January 2013 to 4
July 2014.

Mr. Chen Wei Wen, aged 47, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
in April 2010. He is also a member of the Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Chen holds a
Bachelor of Business (Accounting) from Monash
University, Australia. Mr. Chen worked as a general
manager of Guangzhou Futian Trading Company
Ltd (BMNHEREZERLQA) from 1997 to 2005.
Since November 2004, Mr. Chen was appointed as
chief operating officer of Guangzhou Kanxin Polymer
Technology Co., Ltd (BMMEL =D FEHXBRAR])
which is an affiliated company of Guangzhou Futian
Trading Company Ltd(BMTEREZERAF]).
Mr. Chen was also appointed as director and general
manager of Fuda Enterprises Limited (& mE™ AR
/AA]) since February 1998.
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Ms. Yang Li, aged 44, was appointed as Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in January
2011. She is also the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee of the Company. Ms. Yang holds a
master degree in Law from Renmin University of
China, specializing in philosophy, moral and political
education. From July 1993 to May 2005, Ms. Yang
taught in Chinese People’s Public Security University
as assistant lecturer, lecturer and associate professor.
From June 2005 to November 2006, Ms. Yang acted
as deputy general manager of the administration
and management department of China Exhibition
Investment and Development Corporation Ltd.
From December 2006 to August 2011,
as manager, supervisor and general manager of the
administration department of =RZER (JbR) PR
ZIHHMRAR. Ms. Yang has extensive experience
in corporate operation, human resources and

she acted

administration and management.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chow Wai Koon, Timothy, aged 46, was
appointed as Chief Operating Officer of the Company
in January 2015. Mr. Chow is responsible for directing,
administering and co-ordinating the operational
activities of the Group. He is also responsible for
recommending and developing strategies, goals and
policies of the Group.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Chow devoted
almost 20 years to Hewlett-Packard group (“HP”), a
leading global IT provider of products, technologies,
software, solutions and services. While at HP, Mr.
Chow held several senior positions in sales, marketing,
business planning and finance in the Asia Pacific region
including China, Australia and Singapore.
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EEREREBARCEE

Mr. Chow has extensive experience in sales and
marketing in the Asia Pacific region, particularly
China, across consumer, commercial and enterprise
customers. In addition, Mr. Chow has robust
knowledge of end-to-end systems from research
and development, manufacturing and distribution to
channel, communication and customer support.

Mr. Chow holds a Master's Degree in Business
Administration from the Macquarie Graduate School
of Management, Australia, and a Bachelor’'s Degree
of Accountancy from the Nanyang Technological
University, Singapore.

Mr. Cheng Siu Kwan, aged 46, joined the Company
as the Financial Controller in December 2012 and
has been appointed as the Company Secretary of
the Company in February 2013. Mr. Cheng is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. Cheng held various finance positions at
a number of companies listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited and has over 20 years of
experience in auditing, finance and accounting.

Ms. Chan Yuk Fan, aged 52, joined the Group in
1982 and has held a number of leadership roles in the
Group’s retalil, project sales and procurement division.
Ms. Chan currently is the Deputy Managing Director
of Bun Kee (International) Limited, the pipe trading
subsidiary of the Group and is mainly responsible
for the leadership, control and long-term business
development of the Company. She has extensive
experience and knowledge in managing a successful
piping distribution operation. She is a member of Lions
Club.
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Mr. Lai Kui Chung, aged 58, joined the Group in
1979 and is the Warehouse Director of the pipe
trading subsidiary, Bun Kee (International) Limited.
Mr. Lai is responsible for the warehouse and
transportation activities of the Group. He has over 36
years of experience in supervising warehouse and
transportation operations. Mr. Lai holds a Certificate in
Store Supervision from a technical institute.

Mr. Ku Chun Ming, aged 50, joined the Group in
1993 and is the Sales Director of the pipe trading
subsidiary, Bun Kee (International) Limited. Mr. Ku
is responsible for the Group’s sales operations, new
product development and promotion activities including
the exhibitions and seminars. He has over 29 years of
experience in sales and marketing activities.
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Corporate Governance Report
EEXELIESE

Softpower International Limited* (the “Company”) is
committed to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance. The board of directors of the Company
(the “Board”) and management maintain and enhance
the policies and practices of the Company on a timely,
transparent, effective and reasonable manner, so as
to maintain good, solid and reasonable corporate
governance. The Company believes that good
corporate governance is not only in the interest of
shareholders and investors but also in the interest of
the Company. The Company will continue to raise the
standard to formalize the best practice of corporate
governance as far as we could.

* Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the special
general meeting held on 13 November 2015, the name
of the Company was changed from “China Pipe Group
Limited” to “Softpower International Limited” and the
secondary name of the Company was changed from “ &
EXEEERATF" to “BHBBRBRATF", both effective
from 17 November 2015.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has complied with the code provisions
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”)
as stated in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the year
ended 31 December 2015.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rule (the
“Model Code”). Having made specific enquiry with the
directors of the Company (“Directors”), all Directors
confirmed that they have fully complied with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code during
the year ended 31 December 2015.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

The Board comprises seven Directors, including three
executive Directors, Mr. Lai Guanglin (the Chairman
of the Company), Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng (the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company) and Mr. Lai Fulin; a
non-executive Director, Mr. U Kean Seng; and three
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Wong Yee
Shuen, Wilson, Mr. Chen Wei Wen and Ms. Yang Li,
one of whom namely, Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson
has appropriate professional accounting experience
and expertise. Biographical details of the Directors
are set out in the section headed “BIOGRAPHICAL
DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT” of this Annual Report.

Throughout the year, the Board has at least one-third in
number of its members comprising independent non-
executive Directors under Rule 3.10A of the Listing
Rules.

Each of the non-executive Directors (including the
independent non-executive Directors) has entered into
a service contract with the Company and appointed
for a term of one year. All Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with
the bye-laws of the Company.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors
has made an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is of the view that all the independent non-
executive Directors meet the independence guidelines
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers
that they are independent.

To the best knowledge of the Company, except that
Mr. Lai Guanglin is the elder brother of Mr. Lai Fulin,
there is no relationship (including financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationship) among
members of the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report
LEERERSE

The Board has balance of skills, knowledge and
experience appropriate for the requirements of
the business and to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy. The Board membership is covered
by professionally qualified and widely experienced
personnel to bring in valuable contributions and
different professional advices and consultancy for
development of the Company. All Directors have
separate and independent access to the advice
and services of the senior management and the
company secretary with a view to ensuring the board
procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations are
followed. The principal functions of the Board are to
supervise the management of the business and affairs;
to approve the strategic plans, investment and funding
decision; to review the Group’s financial performance
and operating initiatives.

The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for
formulating overall strategy and polices, monitoring and
controlling the performance of the Group. In addition
to its overall supervisory role, the Board also retains
specific responsibilities such as approving financial
accounts, approving annual budget, recommending
dividend payments, approving policies relating to the
Board’s compliance, etc. whilst managing the Group’s
day-to-day operations is the responsibility of the
management of the Group (the “Management”) such as
implementing internal control, business strategies and
plans set by the Board, etc.. When the Board delegates
certain aspects of its management and administration
functions to the Management, it has given clear
directions as to the powers of the Management.

Continuous Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director has received
comprehensive, formal and tailored induction
on appointment so as to ensure that he/she has
appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Group and that he/she is fully aware
of his/her responsibilities under the Listing Rules, legal

and other regulatory requirements.
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The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments
to or updates on the relevant laws, rules and
regulations.

In addition, all Directors are provided with monthly
updates on the Company’s performance, position and
prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each
Director to discharge their duties.

The Directors confirmed that they have complied with
the code provision A.6.5 of the Code on Directors’
training. During the Year, all Directors have participated
in continuous professional development by attending
seminars and/or reading materials on the following
topics to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
and provided a record of training to the Company.

Name of Directors EFElE
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PR B Z Al R

Mr. Lai Guanglin Lai Guanglin 9t 4 CFL*R
Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng BIRZHESTE C-L*R
Mr. Lai Fulin RS C- LR
Mr. U Kean Seng RIERLSTE C'L'R
Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson =GRS CF'L R
Mr. Chen Wei Wen BRIZX R4 CL°R
Ms. Yang Li THHI 2+ C-L*R
Note: Mz -

C: Corporate Governance C: EER

F: Finance and Accounting F:BBRE:

L: Listing Rules Updates L R AR E T

R: Other Relevant Regulatory Updates R : EMARRERAE R
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ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The position of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company are held by separate
individuals. The role of the Chairman is separated from
that of the Chief Executive Officer. Such division of
responsibilities helps to reinforce their independence
and accountability.

The Chairman of the Company, Mr. Lai Guanglin,
takes up the role of providing leadership for the Board
and ensures that the Board works effectively and
discharges its responsibility properly. With the support
of executive Directors and the Company Secretary, the
Chairman seeks to ensure that all Directors are properly
briefed on issues arising at board meetings and receive
adequate and reliable information in a timely manner.
Mr. Lai also ensures that good corporate governance
practice is in force from time to time, and all key issues
are discussed by the Board in a timely manner.

The Chief Executive Officer of the Company, Mr. Yu
Ben Ansheng, is responsible for managing overall
daily operations of the Group, the implementation of
the Group’s development strategies and plans and
to perform other responsibilities as assigned by the
Board.
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BOARD MEETING

The Board meets regularly, and at least four times a
year, additional meetings are convened when deemed
necessary by the Board. Board members are provided
with complete, adequate and timely information to
allow the Directors to fulfill their duties properly. In
addition, Directors have full access to information
on the Group and independent professional advice
whenever deemed necessary by the Directors.

In addition, the Chairman and non-executive Directors
(including the independent non-executive Directors)
meet at least once every year without the presence of
executive Directors.

During the year, the Board met regularly and held
seven meetings. Notices and board papers were
given to all Directors prior to the board meetings in
accordance with the Code. The Chairman and non-
executive Directors (including the independent non-
executive Directors) met once without the presence of
executive Directors.
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Meetings held in 2015

Details of the Directors’ attendance at Board meetings,
Board committee meetings and general meetings
(including the annual general meeting) respectively held
in 2015 are set out as below:

R-B-HFRTHER

“E-RFENRIREFEER EFSE
BLEBRRAEG (BRERBFASG)NHFE

Attended/Eligible to attend

HERY SERHFERH
Audit Nomination Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
E¥g ELREE REZERE FHERE B3R
-1 ] -1 -1 -1 PN -]
Number of Meetings Held ERETRE 7 3 1 2 3
Executive Directors BOTES
Mr. Lai Guanglin Lai Guanglin £ 7 = 11 22 3/3
Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng MRERAE 777 - - - 2/3
Mr. Lai Fulin RiEm A 77 - - - 2/3
Non-executive Director FBTES
Mr. U Kean Seng RER KA 777 3/3 - - 3/3
Independent BIAFRTES
Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson ~ &JAMEL4 77 3/3 - = 3/3
Mr. Chen Wei Wen BiEsEE 77 3/3 1/1 2/2 3/3
Ms. Yang Li BRI T 77 - 11 2/2 3/3
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BOARD COMMITTEES

A number of Board committees, including audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee, have been established by the Board to
strengthen its functions and to enhance its expertise.
All committees have been formed with specific
written terms of reference which deals clearly with the
respective committees’ authorities and duties.

Remuneration Committee

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration
Committee comprises three members including one
executive Director, namely Mr. Lai Guanglin and two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chen
Wei Wen and Ms. Yang Li. It is chaired by Ms. Yang Li.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration
Committee are as follows:

(@ To make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all directors
and senior management remuneration and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(b) To review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the
Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

() To make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive
directors and senior management, including
benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments (including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment); and

(d) To make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive directors.
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The remuneration package of executive Directors
is determined by reference to their duties and
responsibilities, experience and the prevailing market
conditions. The remuneration package of individual
executive Directors includes salary, discretionary bonus
and share based payment. Details of the Directors’ fee
and other emoluments of the Directors of the Company
are set out in Note 30 to the financial statements.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the
model that it will review the proposals made by
the management on the remuneration of executive
Directors and senior management, and make
recommendations to the Board. The Board will have
final authority to approve the recommendations made
by the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings
during 2015, the following major matters were reviewed
and discussed in the meetings and recommended to
the Board for approval:

° To review the remuneration policy and
remuneration packages of Directors and senior
management of the Company;

° To consider the bonus arrangement of the
Directors and senior management of the
Company; and

° To review the new service contracts entered
into between the Company and non-executive
Directors.

Pursuant to B.1.5 of the CG Code, the details
remuneration of the senior management of the
Company by band for the year ended 31 December
2015 was set out in Note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements of this Annual Report.
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Nomination Committee

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee
comprises three members including one executive
Director, namely Mr. Lai Guanglin and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chen Wei Wen
and Ms. Yang Li. It is chaired by Mr. Lai Guanglin, the
Chairman of the Board.

In August 2013, the Company adopted the Board
Diversity Policy in accordance with the requirement
set out in the code provision of the Code. Such
policy sets out the approach to achieve diversity on
Board. With a view to achieving a sustainable and
balanced development, the Company sees increasing
diversity at the Board level as an essential element in
supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and
its sustainable development. Selection of candidates
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.

The major roles and functions of the Nomination
Committee are as follows:

(@ To review the structure, size and composition
(board diversity has been considered from a
number of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service) of the Board
at least annually and make recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;
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(b) To identify individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection
of, individuals nominated for directorships.
All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board;

(c) To review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, and disclose the Board Diversity
Policy or its summary in the corporate
governance report of the Company including
the measurable objectives set for implementing
the Board Diversity Policy and progress made
towards achieving these measurable objectives;

(d)  To assess the independence of independent non-
executive directors; and

(e) To make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and
succession planning for directors in particular the
chairman and the chief executive.

The Nomination Committee held a meeting during
2015, the following major issues were reviewed and
discussed in the meeting:

° To review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board;

° To review the Board Diversity Policy; and
o To evaluate and make recommendation as to the
qualification and experience of the directors who

were subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the 2015 annual general meeting.
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Audit Committee

As at the date of this report, Audit Committee consists
of two independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson and Mr. Chen Wei Wen,
and a non-executive Director, namely Mr. U Kean
Seng. It is chaired by Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson
who has the appropriate professional qualifications,
accounting and financial management expertise.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee
are as follows:

(@ To make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor,
and any questions of its resignation or dismissal;

(b)  To monitor integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and to review significant financial
reporting judgements contained in them;

(¢) To review the Company’s financial controls, risk
management and internal control systems; and

(d) To discuss the risk management and internal
control systems with management to ensure
that management has performed its duty to have
effective systems.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during 2015
and the following major matters were reviewed and
discussed in the meetings:

° To review the annual results of 2014 and
the interim results of 2015 and making
recommendation to the Board for approval;
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° To make recommendation on the re-appointment
of the auditor;

° To review the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting
function and their training programme and related
budget;

° To review the risk management and internal
control systems;

° To approve the auditor’s fees for audit of 2015
financial statements; and

° To discuss the audit service plan of 2015.
Corporate Governance Functions

The Board has adopted the written terms of reference
on corporate governance functions in March 2012
SO as to assist the Board performing corporate
governance functions. The terms of reference of the
Board in respect of corporate governance functions are
summarized as follows:

(@ To develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance;

(b) To review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management;

(c) To review and monitor the Company’s policies
and practices to ensure compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements;

(d) To develop, review and monitor the code

of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and Directors; and
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(e) To review the Company’s compliance with
the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules and its disclosure requirements
in Corporate Governance Report.

During the vyear, the Board has reviewed the

Company’s corporate governance policies and

practices,

development of Directors and senior management, the

training and continuing professional

Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of
the Model Code, and the Company’s compliance with
the Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report. In addition, the Board has approved the
adoption of the revised terms of reference of the Audit

Committee.

This corporate governance report has been reviewed
by the Board in discharge of its corporate governance
functions.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The fees charged by the auditor generally depends on
the scope and volume of the auditor’s work. For the
year ended 31 December 2015, the remuneration to
the auditor of the Company in respect of audit services
was HK$1,140,000 and fees related to taxation
services and other non-audit services amount to
HK$84,500 and HK$60,000 respectively.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced,
clear and understandable assessment of annual and
interim reports, inside information announcements and
other disclosures required under the Listing Rules and
other regulatory requirements. The senior management
provides such explanation and information to the
Board so as to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment of the financial information and position of
the Company.
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The Directors acknowledge the responsibilities
for preparing the accounts of the Company. The
responsibilities of the auditor of the Company with
respect to the financial statements of the Group is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 68 to
70.

GOING CONCERN

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries,
consider that the Company has adequate resources
to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate
system of internal controls within the Group and for
reviewing their effectiveness. The system of internal
controls is designed to facilitate effective and efficient
operations, to safeguard assets and to ensure
the quality of internal and external reporting and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. It is
also designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance that material misstatement or loss can be
avoided, and to manage and minimize risks of failure in
operation systems.

The Board engaged a professional consulting
firm to perform internal control review to assess
the effectiveness of the financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions of
the Company and the Group’s major subsidiaries on a
rotation basis.
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At the meeting of the Audit Committee held on
17 March 2016, the professional consulting firm
reported their review work for the year ended 31
December 2015 performed in accordance with the
detailed risk-based internal control review plan which
was approved by the Audit Committee. The Board,
through the Audit Committee, has conducted a review
of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
systems for the year ended 31 December 2015. The
Audit Committee members, together with the senior
management, have also reviewed, considered and
discussed all findings relating to the internal control
systems and recommendations for improvement.

The Audit Committee also reviewed and was satisfied
with the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting function.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company is Mr. Cheng
Siu Kwan, who is also the Financial Controller of
the Company. Mr. Cheng is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He fulfills the requirement under Rules
3.28 and 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

The Company Secretary is responsible for providing
secretarial services to the Board and ensuring the
operation of the Company is properly complied with
Hong Kong listed companies’ regulatory requirements
as well as enhancing its corporate governance
standards.
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All Directors have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary with a view to ensuring
that board procedures and all applicable rules and
regulations are followed. Company Secretary is also
the secretary of each of Board committees. Minutes of
Board meetings and meetings of all Board committees
are kept by the Company Secretary and are available
for inspection by the Directors at all times.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Right to convene special general meeting

Pursuant to Section 74(1) of the Bermuda Companies
Act and the bye-law 62 of the Bye-Laws of the
Company, the shareholder(s) of the Company holding
at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
as at the date of the deposit carries the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company may request
the Board to convene a special general meeting. The
requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and
must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited
at the registered office of the Company and its head
office and principal place of business in Hong Kong for
the attention of Company Secretary and may consist
of several documents in like form each signed by one
or more requisitionists. If the Directors do not within
twenty-one days from the date of the deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more than
one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of three
months from the said date.
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Right to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company’s share registrar. Other
shareholders’ enquiries can be directed to the head
office and principal place of business of the Company
in Hong Kong as set out in the “CORPORATE
INFORMATION” section of this Annual Report for the
attention of Company Secretary.

Right to put forward proposals at general meetings

Pursuant to Sections 79(1) and 79(2) of the Bermuda
Companies Act, on the requisition in writing of either (i)
any number of members of the Company representing
not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of
all the members having at the date of the requisition
a right to vote at the meeting to which the requisition
relates; or (i) not less than one hundred members, the
Company shall, at the expense of the requisitionists
unless the Company otherwise resolves:

(@ to give to members of the Company entitled to
receive notice of the next annual general meeting
notice of any resolution which may properly
be moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting;

(b) to circulate to shareholders entitled to have
notice of any general meeting sent to them any
statement of not more than one thousand words
with respect to the matter referred to in any
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt
with at that meeting.
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A copy or copies of requisition signed by all
requisitionists shall be deposited, with a sum
reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses
in giving notice of the proposed resolution or circulating
any necessary statement, at the registered office of
the Company and its head office and principal place of
business in Hong Kong in the case of:

(i) a requisition requiring notice of a resolution, not
less than six weeks before the meeting; and

(i) any other requisition, not less than one week
before the meeting.

The Company will verify the requisition and upon
confirming that the requisition is proper and in order,
the Board will proceed with the necessary procedures.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board is obliged to provide regular, effective
and fair communication with the shareholders and
the investors of the Company. Latest information is
conveyed to the Shareholders and the investors of the
Company on a timely basis.

A Shareholder Communication Policy (the “Policy”) was
adopted by the Company in March 2012. The Policy
aims to set out the provisions with the objective of
ensuring that the latest information of the Company is
conveyed to the Shareholders and investors on a timely
basis. The Company uses a range of communication
tools to ensure the Shareholders and the investors are
kept well informed of key business imperatives.
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Disclosure of Information

Information shall be communicated to Shareholders
and the investors mainly through the Company’s
financial reports (interim and annual reports), annual
general meetings and other general meetings that may
be convened, as well as by making available all the
disclosures submitted to The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”) and
its corporate communications and other corporate
publications on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s
website and the Company’s website.

General Meeting

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general
meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and vote at
meetings for and on their behalf if they are unable to
attend the meetings. Shareholders’ views on matters
that affect the Company are welcome by the Board at
shareholders’ meetings. Shareholders of the Company
are notified of shareholders’ meetings through notices
and reports or circulars sent to them. Each item
of special business in the notice of the meeting is
accompanied, where appropriate, by an explanation
for the proposed resolution. A separate resolution is
proposed by the chairman of the meetings in respect
of each separate issue, including the re-election of
Directors.

The Chairman of the Board and Chairmen of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee or failing him/her, his/her duly appointed
delegate, are available at the annual general meeting
to answer questions with regard to the work of these
committees.
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Voting by Poll

Save as provided under the Listing Rules, resolutions
put to vote at the general meetings of the Company
(other than procedural matters) are taken by poll.
Procedures regarding the conduct of the poll are
explained to the shareholders at the commencement of
each general meeting, and questions from shareholders
regarding the voting procedures are answered. The poll
results are posted on the respective websites of the
Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on the
same day of the poll.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company maintains a website (www.softpower.hk)
where information and updates on the list of Directors
and their roles and functions, constitutional documents,
terms of reference of the Board committees,
procedures for shareholders to propose a person
for election as a director, announcements, circulars
and reports, etc. released to the HKExnews’ website
(www.hkexnews.hk) and other information are
posted. Information on the Company’s website will be
updated from time to time. A dedicated email address
(ir@softpower.hk) for investor enquiry is set out in the
“Contact Us” section on the Company’s website.

Constitutional Documents

During the year, there was no significant change to the
Company’s constitutional documents.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) have
pleasure in presenting their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the special
general meeting held on 13 November 2015, the name
of the Company was changed from “China Pipe Group
Limited” to “Softpower International Limited” and the
secondary name of the Company was changed from
CHREXEEARARF o “THBEEAERZAFR, both
effective from 17 November 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are
set out in Note 32 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating segments is set out in Note 5 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015 are set out in the consolidated income
statement on page 71.

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2015.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year
and a discussion on the Group’s future business
development, possible risks and uncertainties that the
Group may be facing are set out in the sections headed
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this Annual Report.

The details of financial risk management of the Group
are set out in Note 3 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
using financial key performance indicators is set out in
the section headed “Five-Year Financial Summary” of
this Annual Report.

The compliance with relevant laws and regulations
which have a significant impact on the Group is set out
in this “Report of Directors” and the section headed
“Corporate Governance Report” of this Annual Report.

Social Responsibilities and Services and
Environmental policies

The Group is committed in promoting the sustainable
development of both the environment and the society.

We believe it is more blessed to give than to receive.
As such, we support and encourage our employees
to participate in community service activities. With the
support from the management team, our core business
company, Bun Kee (International) Limited (“Bun Kee”)
is committed to participate and support social services
activities. In this regard, Bun Kee has awarded the
Caring Company logo in recognition of our corporate
social responsibility’s participation and commitment.
We also believe in the ripple effect which those people,
whom we helped, will in turn help others who are in
need.
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In 2015, we have involved in community care and
support, including the event of “The Fan Delivery”
jointly organised by ACRA Caring Committee and
Caritas Community Centre-Ngau Tau Kok, and we
have sponsored the activity of “E & M Safety Walk
Carnival Fair 2015” jointly organized by The Hong Kong
Federation of Electrical and Mechanical Contractors
Limited and The Federation of Hong Kong Electrical &
Mechanical Industries Trade Unions.

With regards to environmental policy, we pay a great
deal of attention to promoting environmental protection.
We will integrate environmental awareness in our daily
operations including:

° Reduce electricity consumption, improve energy
efficiency, use of energy-efficient products to
replace the appliances and equipment;

° Tumn off lightings, air-conditioners and electrical
appliances in offices after working hours, or
when rooms not being used, for instance, the
conference rooms;

° Using electronic means for communications
internally and with external parties;

° Reduce the need to copy and print. Use of
recycled paper, copy and print on both sides of
the paper, where appropriate; and

° Re-use of office supplies (such as single-sided
paper, paper clips, envelopes, file folders, paper
bags, plastic bags).

Relationships with key stakeholders

The Group understands and supports that employees,
customers, suppliers and business partners, investors
and shareholders are vital to our sustainable and stable
development.
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(i)

(i)

Employees

The Group is an equal opportunity employer.
Our employee handbook outlines terms and
conditions of employment, code of conduct and
employee benefits. We promote harmony and
respect in our workplace. Employees are one
of our most important assets. To that end, we
provide self-improvement and advancement
opportunities as well as a safe workplace
in order to retain high calibre employees.
The Group values the well-being and health
of our employees and therefore provides
medical insurance coverage and benefits to
our employees. In addition, we will organize
staff gathering quarterly and annual dinner, all
management will also participate to maintain
good relations with employees and promote two-
way communication. The Company will conduct
staff appraisal annually, and also provide exit
interviews for the outgoing employees. We adopt
an open policy to allow employees at any time, by
email or in person to the department managers
or Human Resources department to express their
views.

Customers

We provide high quality products to our
customers constantly as it is the best way to
retain customers and business growth. Our sales
team will visit customers regularly to keep abreast
of new opportunities and challenges. All opinions
received will be prompt handled by the relevant
team. We grow up together with most of our
customers in past years and we have established
solid and long-term relationships with them. We
also have built up a trust and good reputation
among our customers over the years.

Softpower International Limited BHEBERAF

()

(ii)

ES

AEBE—AFEFREHEE - HFIWETFMH
Bt T BB R - BT RS RIME TRNT
EHIER - RPER TR MR MEE - B
TREMETEREENEE L — - St - PR
HERTEMBROKES @ BREHZENTIFR
5 NEESRENETL - AEESZHREMNME
Tk HitRMREEERRRNENTE
T o ttdh RMEERFTENE IREMBFG
EOEEEEHE2HE  BETRISRIFNE
% WREERER - RRSEFRETHEIT—
RER - g REVEEEEN 8 THEITRRmA
LRI ROER - R EE AT AR AR -
BREF B EARBPIEEIA N ERALHE
RBFINER

EF

ZRTEHRESRENERGRMANETS  BS
ERBETFPMREFFIBRARET X - 7]
MHEBB S ERERTS - EEIHE T RN
FHEBMLE - WEMAEER - M hiak
BB BB BRAE - BPIRE M B P EHERMEBE
SEP—BERMA RASKEMBMAREL TR
BMEMNEEE - ZFK - RFATERLREXN
FEFHBEMNEEMRFOE -



(iii)

(iv)

Suppliers and business partners

For our suppliers and business partners, we strive
to maintain a stable and long-term relationship
with them. The Group’s procurement is based
on our stringent suppliers’ selection criteria. To
ensure the highest quality of products, the Group
has requested the suppliers to provide product
we engaged highly
reputable independent laboratories for quality

certification. In addition,
testing to ensure that the products comply with
local and international standards. Our sales team
and procurement team will have regular visit to
our suppliers’ factories for inspection. In order
to allow our customers to have direct feedback
channel to the suppliers, we will also organize
some factory tours to the customers. This can let
them better understanding of the production flow
and products quality affirmation in order to win
the utmost confidence of customers.

Investors and shareholders

For the investors and shareholders, we maintain
a high level of transparency and communicate
with them through meetings, announcements
and circulars. The Company maintains a website,
the information will be updated from time to time.
In addition, a dedicated email address is set out
in the “Contact Us” section of the Company’s
website for investor and general public inquiry.

(iii)

(iv)
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the distributable reserves of the Company
as at 31 December 2015 are set out in Note 29 to the
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in properties, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in Note 13 to the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the
Company are set out in Note 21 to the financial
statements.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the special
general meeting held on 16 January 2015, every
ten shares of the Company’s issued and unissued
shares with par value of HK$0.002 per share have
been consolidated into one share with par value of
HK$0.02 with effect from 19 January 2015 (the “Share
Consolidation”).

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2015 are set out in Note 23 to the financial
statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares
during the year. Neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the
Company’s shares during the year.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws or the Bermuda Companies
Act, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was
incorporated.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2015 are set out in Note 32 to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up
to the date of this report are:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lai Guanglin (Chairman)
Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lai Fulin

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. U Kean Seng

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson
Mr. Chen Wei Wen
Ms. Yang Li

In accordance with bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws of the
Company, Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng, Mr. Chen Wei Wen
and Ms. Yang Li will retire from office by rotation and
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each independent
non-executive Director an annual confirmation of his/
her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and the Company considers that all of them are
independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and senior
management are set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company has entered into any service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries, which
is not terminable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors and their respective associates
has an interest in any business which competes or
may compete with the business in which the Group
engaged.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme approved by the
shareholders of the Company on 24 June 2004 (the
“2004 Scheme”) which expired on 23 June 2014.
Thereafter, no further options will be granted under
the 2004 Scheme but the subsisting options granted
thereunder prior to the expiry date will continue to be
valid and exercisable in accordance with the terms of
the 2004 Scheme.

At the Annual General Meeting of the Company held
on 21 May, 2015, the shareholders of the Company
approved the adoption of a new share option scheme
(the “2015 Scheme”) under which the directors of the
Company may grant options to eligible persons to
subscribe for the Company’s shares subject to the
terms and conditions as stipulated therein. Unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, the 2015 Scheme will
remain valid for a period of 10 years from the date of its
adoption.

1. The 2004 Scheme
The details of 2004 Scheme are as follows:
(a) Purpose
The purpose of the 2004 Scheme is to
provide the Company with a flexible means

of giving incentive and/or rewarding the
participants.
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(b)

(c)

Participants of the Scheme

The Board may offer to grant options to the
participants which means () any Director
(including any executive director, non-
executive director or independent non-
executive director) of any member of the
Group; (i) any employee (whether full-
time or part-time) of any member of the
Group; (iii) any consultant, adviser, supplier,
customer or sub-contractor of the Group;
and (iv) any other person whatsoever from
time to time determined by the Board as
having contributed to the development,
growth or benefit of the Group.

Total number of shares available for
issue under the Scheme

The total number of shares of the Company
which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the
Company must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of the general
meeting of the Company approving the
Scheme. The number of shares may
be refreshed by the approval of the
shareholders and the refreshed limit of the
number of shares must not exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company
as the date of the approval of the refreshed
limit. The maximum number of shares of
the Company which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the
Company must not exceed 30% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue
from time to time.
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(d)

(e)

(f)

The total number of shares available for issue
upon exercise of all options were granted
under the Scheme are 20,300,000 Shares,
representing approximately 1.52% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue as
at the date of this report.

Maximum entitlement of each
participant

Total number of shares of the Company
issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted to each participant
(including exercised or outstanding options)
in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the total number of shares in issue as
at the date of grant.

Minimum period for options to be held

No minimum period for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised
unless otherwise specified in the relevant
offer letter.

Period and payment on acceptance of
options

Pursuant to the Scheme, HK$10 is
payable by the grantee to the Company on
acceptance of the option within 28 days
from the date of grant of the option.

(@

(e)

®
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(9

(h)

Basis determining the subscription price

The subscription price of a share in respect
of any particular option granted under the
Scheme shall be a price determined by
the Board and notified to the participants
and shall be at least the highest of (a) the
closing price of the shares as stated in The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”) daily
quotation sheet on the date on which the
options are deemed to be granted and
accepted in accordance with the terms
of the Scheme (the “Commencement
Date”), which must be a business day; (b)
the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the
Commencement Date; and (c) the nominal
value of the shares.

Life of the Scheme

Subject to earlier termination by the
Company at general meeting or by the
Board, the life of the Scheme commenced
from 24 June 2004, date of adoption, and
ended on 23 June 2014.
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Details of options granted, exercised,
lapsed, cancelled and outstanding under
the Scheme during the year (the information
of exercise price, number and share
price of the Company is disclosed on the
basis of the information after the Share

Consolidation became effective) are as

Report of the Directors
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REER - RIFFHEIRE - 17 - K3
AL K RTTEE R A 2 FF 1B (A RATT 1%
B BB REOERERTIRERD A 5
MR ERFAES) T

follows:
Movement during the year
N

Held as at Held as at

Exercise 1 January 31 December

Price 2015 2015

HK$ W-Z—RF Grantedand R-B-1%

Name of Directors Date of grant fifem -B-H accepted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled+=A=+—H

iy R A5 #T B8 CRHEER B fTfE B&N EE# 58

Lai Fulin Mete ¥ 3/12/2009 0.71 5,000,000 - - - - 5,000,000
R

U Kean Seng e 3/12/2009 0.71 3,000,000 - - - - 3,000,000
LRk (i)

Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson e 3/12/2009 0.71 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000
BpA oy

Chen Wei Wen M2 5/5/2010 0.83 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000
R S 22

Yang Li M9 8/6/2011 0.392 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000

e

11,000,000 - - - - 11,000,000

Employees o744 3/12/2009 0.71 9,300,000 - - - - 9,300,000
[ER 1Ry

Employee 2 5/5/2010 0.83 600,000 - - 600,000 - -

20,900,000 - - 600,000 - 20,300,000
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Notes: BiteE -

1. The options granted to these grantees are vested in 1.

stages and be exercised in the following manner:

Maximum percentage of options exercisable
AT R ERESE DL

BRYZEREANBRESOEERBEE - WE TR
I

Period for exercise of the relevant percentage
of the options

T RRRBREE Dt 2 IR

20% 3/6/2010 — 2/12/2019
20% 3/6/2011 - 2/12/2019
20% 3/6/2012 — 2/12/2019
20% 3/6/2013 — 2/12/2019
20% 3/6/2014 — 2/12/2019
2. The options granted to these grantees are vested in 2. BTZSEARANBRESOBERSEE  WZKNUATAHR

stages and be exercised in the following manner:

Maximum percentage of options exercisable
AT ERESRS A DL

it

Period for exercise of the relevant percentage
of the options

TR Dt 2 IR

20% 5/11/2010 — 4/5/2020
20% 5/11/2011 — 4/5/2020
20% 5/11/2012 - 4/5/2020
20% 5/11/2013 — 4/5/2020
20% 5/11/2014 — 4/5/2020
3. The options granted to this grantee are vested in stages 3. B aEs AR O RERSEE - iR N HRTT

and be exercised in the following manner:

Maximum percentage of options exercisable
AT R ERm A AL

20%
20%
20%
20%
20%

4. Vesting of options granted to certain employees is 4, BFAETREEZERE

subject to achievement of profit target.

Details of the fair value of options granted under the
Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2015 and
the accounting policy adopted for the options are set
out in Note 21 and Note 2 to the financial statements
respectively.
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1%

Period for exercise of the relevant percentage
of the options

TR A Dt 2 IR

8/12/2011 - 7/6/2021
8/12/2012 - 7/6/2021
8/12/2013 - 7/6/2021
8/12/2014 - 7/6/2021
8/12/2015 - 7/6/2021
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2.

The 2015 Scheme

The details of 2015 Scheme are as follows:

(a)

(b)

Purpose

The purpose of the 2015 Scheme is
to recognize and acknowledge the
contributions or potential contributions
made or to be made by the participants to
the Group, to motivate the participants to
optimize their performance and efficiency
for the benefit of the Group, and to maintain
or attract business relationship with the
participants whose contributions are or may
be beneficial to the growth of the Group.

Participants

The Board may offer to grant options
to the participants which means () any
director (including any executive director,
non-executive director or independent
non-executive director) of any member
of the Group; (i) any employee (whether
in full time or part-time employment)
of any member of the Group; (i) any
consultant, adviser, supplier, customer
or sub-contractor of the Group, and (iv)
any other person whatsoever from time to
time determined by the Board as having
contributed to the development, growth or
benefit of the Group.

Report of the Directors
EFEHEE

—E-hF5E

BRE—Z—AFa8FBmT

@

(b)

=)

—E-REHEEERBREESEEY
AEBECEHABELNEMKELESR
B BE2RENRERREESEER
AEBEBENS  WHBRRS|IHSEE
MEBRE  EERANRSIHEEMNR
AEEWEE -

2HEE
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%) (\AKRBEERKE 2 EEE (T
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(c)

(d)

Total number of shares available for
issue under the Scheme

The total number of shares of the Company
which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the
Company must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of the general
meeting of the Company approving the
Scheme. The number of shares may
be refreshed by the approval of the
shareholders and the refreshed limit of the
number of shares must not exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company
as the date of the approval of the refreshed
limit. The maximum number of shares of
the Company which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the
Company must not exceed 30% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue
from time to time.

The total number of shares available for
issue under the Scheme are 133,327,000
Shares, representing 10% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue
as at the date of this report.

Maximum entitlement of each
participant

Total number of shares of the Company
issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted to each participant
(including exercised or outstanding options)
in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the total number of shares in issue as
at the date of grant.
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(e)

(f)

(9

Minimum period for options to be held

No minimum period for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised
unless otherwise specified in the relevant
offer letter.

Period and payment on acceptance of
options

HK$10 is
payable by the grantee to the Company on

Pursuant to the Scheme,

acceptance of the option within 28 days
from the date of grant of the option.

Basis determining the subscription price

The subscription price of a share in respect
of any particular option granted under the
Scheme shall be a price determined by
the Board and notified to the participants
and shall be at least the highest of (a) the
closing price of the shares as stated in The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”) daily
quotation sheet on the date on which the
options are deemed to be granted and
accepted in accordance with the terms
of the Scheme (the “Commencement
Date”), which must be a business day; (b)
the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the
Commencement Date; and (c) the nominal
value of the shares.
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(h) Life of the Scheme

Subject to earlier termination by the
Company at general meeting or by the
Board, the life of the Scheme commenced
from 21 May 2015, the date of adoption,
and ended on 20 May 2025.

As at 31 December 2015, no share option
was granted by the Company under the 2015
Scheme.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

The interests of the directors in the share options of
the Company are separately disclosed in the section
headed “SHARE OPTION SCHEME” above.

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short
positions of the Directors and chief executive of
the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were
set out below:
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(h) FEZEXA

BRAQNARABREAE LIHESSRER
IESN BB —AFAHA
“t+—BERMBE)BRE-FE-_RAFHA
Z+HILE-

BE-Z—AF+-_A=1+—8 AR FIEEH
BIE - —AFT R ERE -

EEREN - ARRMRASFZHEIRKE

EFFHARQ AW L (R8I —
#5°R BITHE -

RZEBE—RAFFTZA=+—0 ARAIEEFRETE1T
BAEBRAR AR SEF AR EZE (ERREHRAE
=t ([ 35 5 R ERE A& ] ) 8B XV BD) KIRR 19 ~ ABRARRD K
EEFT - EEBETLDRARRIREES RS G
E 352 RE T BRMeERIAR - HERE EHAR
AIEFETESFRZNEESTR (ZEFR ) Me R
NAIRE BT ESRIOKBIAT ¢



Report of the Directors
EFEEHEE

Long positions in the shares and underlying share REAQATROREBRO ZEFE
of the Company
Approximate
percentage of
Personal Corporate shares in issue
Name of Directors Capacity Interests Interests Total {HE BTG
EXEB 2 EARS HEES st BHEat
Lai Guanglin Interest of controlled corporation - 770,562,120 770,562,120 57.79%
g @%\]/2 %E (Note 1#f3£1)
Yu Ben Ansheng Beneficial owner/Interest 3,000,000 146,000,000 149,000,000 11.18%
(lpees of controlled corporation Note 24122)
ERBAAN/ZEEEER
Notes: BiE -
1.  These shares are held by Singapore Zhongxin 1. %R Singapore Zhongxin Investment Company

Investment Company Limited, which is wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. Lai Guanglin, an executive
Director and the Chairman of the Company.
Accordingly, Mr. Lai is deemed to be interested in such
shares under the SFO.

2. These shares are held by King Jade Holdings Limited,
which is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Yu Ben
Ansheng, an executive Director and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Yu is deemed
to be interested in such shares under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above and in the section headed
“SHARE OPTION SCHEME” above, as at 31 December
2015, none of the Directors or chief executive or
their respective associates had any interests or short
positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

Limited#$ 75 -+ %A &) Lai Guanglinft 4 (ANA B Z #1717
EERIR)EESMA - At REFFRBER
Bl Lai e EWAR AR ERD P A -

2. #ZZ5R& 5 King Jade Holdings Limited 355 © 722 &M
BRERE(RRARZHITESRERBIITE) 2EES
A - AL - BIBESREEEN - g1k EWE ARZ
ERMDFP IR S -

B EX Rm— 6 [RBAERT 8] PriREEIN R=F
—HAF+-A=1t—H BEEFIAERTERAEX
BEZBZHMBEATR AR SEEARBERE (EXE
REBESFNAEGOIEXVER) B - R kiEEE
B BHRAECHRARRIREE S NS 5P 352 5
FEZETMzEEIORE  HARBEEETANES
ARBREBEYR T ESSIIRE
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2015, the interests or short
positions of the following persons or corporations,
other than the Directors or chief executive of the
Company, in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO
were as follows:

Long position in share and underlying share of the

Company

Name of shareholders Capacity

BRAE Sin

Singapore Zhongxin Investment Beneficial owner
Company Limited Mote 7/ 1) EnEAA

Li Juan Mete2) Interest of spouse

248 (Wit2) [y e

King Jade Holdings Limited ®ete 323 Beneficial owner
EnEAA

Notes:

1. Singapore Zhongxin Investment Company Limited is
wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Lai Guanglin, an
executive Director and the Chairman of the Company.
Accordingly, Mr. Lai is deemed to be interested in such
shares under the SFO.

2. Ms. Li Juan, the spouse of Mr. Lai Guanglin, is also
deemed to be interested in Mr. Lai’s interest in the
Company under the SFO.

3. King Jade Holdings Limited is wholly and beneficially
owned by Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng, an executive Director
and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
Accordingly, Mr. Yu is deemed to be interested in such
shares under the SFO.

62 Softpower International Limited & hEIRAR A

FERR
REZF-—RF+-A=1t—H8 UTFTALIEE(LX

PR ARREZHZSITRABRIN RAR TR
D RARBAEROEEREECR AR RIREESF MR K
PI1% 336 IRFE 2 Bz ek B T ¢

REQBDRBREBERD ZHR
Number of Approximate
shares/underlying percentage of
shares held shares in issue
FR¥SBIR, EERTERR
R B E EBiHES
770,552,120 57.79%
770,552,120 57.79%
146,000,000 10.95%

P%E

3.

Singapore Zhongxin Investment Company Limited J5
Lai Guanglne4 (ARBIZHTEERER) 2 EEHR
WA - At - REFSRIAEGN - LaikEHE AR
ZERG AR o

RIEESRPEGED - FELL (Lai Guanghn FTEZ L
18) TR R Lal R AENA R R Z #Ess

King Jade Holdings Limited JYF g% A4 24 (ANAF)Z
WTEEHRERWNTE)2EESHES - At - REE
HREFERG - ari EWAR ARZERO PG R



Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015,
the Company had not been notified by any persons or
corporations, other than the Directors or chief executive
of the Company, who had interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Group were entered into or existed
during the year.

DONATIONS

Donations for charitable made by the Group during the
year amounted to HK$10,800.

SHARES ISSUED

The Company has not issued any share during the year
ended 31 December 2015.

DEBENTURE ISSUED

The Company has not issued any debenture during the
year ended 31 December 2015.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share
Option Schemes” above, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into by the Group, or existed during the
year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws, every Director
shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against all losses or liabilities which he/
she may sustain or incur in or about the execution
of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation
thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors
and officers of the Group throughout the year.

MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENT OR
CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as the disclosure of related party transactions
set out in Note 28 to the financial statements, no
Director or an entity connected with Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, in any
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to
the business of the Group to which the Company, its
holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party during the year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER’S
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

There was no contract of significance between any
members of the Group and the Company’s controlling
shareholders subsisting at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.
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ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share
Option Scheme” above, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares or debentures of the Company or any other
body corporate.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed in Note 28 to the financial
statements, during the year, there were no connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
which are required to comply with any of the reporting,
announcement or independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the
year attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and
customers are as follows:

Purchases
—the largest supplier 25.71%
— five largest suppliers combined 63.09%
Sales
— the largest customer 8.75%
— five largest customers combined 25.85%

None of the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)
had an interest in the major suppliers or customers
noted above.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Details of the compliance with corporate governance
code of the Company are set out in the “CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REPORT” of this Annual Report.

INFORMATION OF THE DIRECTORS
PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE
LISTING RULES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, change
in the information of the Director of the Company
required to be disclosed in this report is as follows:

° On 17 November 2015, Mr. Wong Yee Shuen,
Wilson, an independent non-executive Director
of the Company, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of Ping An
Securities Group (Holdings) Limited (Stock code:
231, a company listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee consists of two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Yee Shuen,
Wilson and Mr. Chen Wei Wen, and a non-executive
Director, namely Mr. U Kean Seng.

By reference to “A Guide for the Formation of An Audit
Committee” published by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, written terms of reference
which describe the authority and duties of the audit
committee were prepared and adopted by the Board of
the Company.

The annual results have been reviewed by the audit
committee of the Company.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors,
the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float required under the Listing Rules as at the date of
this report.

AUDITORS
The financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible,

offer themselves for re-appointment.

By Order of the Board

Lai Guanglin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2016
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To the Shareholders of Softpower International Limited
(formerly known as China Pipe Group Limited)
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Softpower International Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries set out on pages 71 to 159,
which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2015, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Softpower International Limited BHEBERAF
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Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit
and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Independent Auditor’s Report
WA MENERE

ZMETRE

BPNEERRERMANBAEZSFRAMHHRRE
RER  YERBBEFRE(—NN\—FRBE)E WO FE
[ T (ERER)|E BRI ZINRHRE I EEL A
BE) - R T ERARENATRAEMEMALTE L
FAEEMEE

BRPEREBEEESTMASRMNEERTEET
it o RFERERLMETEEARE - LHRIIRH
TR NEGEE P BEREES TEEEMEARERR
MRS IBIRAE ©

B RATREFAERERGAMBERERME SR
R BEENNETRE - MMERNREFIURNZEED
R B B E AN RFE BRI EBR S MK
REEBARERBLNER - £ EZEARE - &
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Independent Auditor’s Report
WIAZMENER S

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Company and its subsidiaries as at 31 December
2015, and of their financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 March 2016

Softpower International Limited BHEBERAF
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Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other losses, net

Selling and distribution costs
General and administrative expenses

Operating profit

Finance income
Finance costs

Finance costs, net

Profit before income tax
Tax expense

Profit for the year attributable to
equity holders of the Company

Earnings per share
Basic and diluted

Consolidated Income statement
Fekax

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_ZT—RF+-A=1+—HILFE

2015 2014
—E—AF —EF—F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T FET T
A 5 611,534 553,845
SHE A 7 (445,801) (416,116)
EH 165,733 137,729
HthEsi8) 558 6 (1,907) (1,861)
SHE & SHAK A 7 (23,226) (19,032)
—E RITEE R 7 (100,971) (90,426)
e eyl 39,629 26,410
BT A 9 1,282 1,267
B 758 A 9 (1,326) (1,586)
9758 FAFRE 9 (44) (319
H A& A 39,585 26,091
THIEX 10 (5,562) (4,362)
RARREREE A
2 FEE A 34,023 21,729
HK cents HK cents
211} I
AT
BEARREE 11 2.55 1.63

The notes on pages 78 to 159 are an integral part of % 78 21598 Mz Rt Eire MGk 2 g Hh -

these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FeEREBRR

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_ZT—RF+-A=1+—HILFE

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:
Item that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss

Actuarial loss on post-employment
benefit obligations, net of tax

Items that have been reclassified
or may be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss

Currency translation differences

Release of exchange reserve
upon disposal of a subsidiary

Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax, attributable
to equity holders of the Company

The notes on pages 78 to 159 are an integral part of
these consolidated financial statements.

Softpower International Limited BhEBERAF

Note
B 5T
FERF
HAoth 2w :

AERTEEFEE
Ba FsE Rz HA

BRI R A EBOEE
B - MkRHEE 22

=) ey
EFEEEm
HERZER

B R 22

HERBARZ
VE 53 (7 {2 e 18 22

Bk

S

REEEMEER
BRI IR

ARABIREFEA
FRRBILES
G

2015 2014
—E—hF —EF—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT T
34,023 21,729

(340) (411)

246 (158)

- (1,651)

(94) (2,220)

33,929 19,509

F78E159A MR FHRAMEHR 2R D



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
REMERAER

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFT-A=T—HIEFE

2015 2014
—E—hF —T N4
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B = TET T
ASSETS gE
Non-current assets ERBHEE
Property, plant and equipment L E =N 13 5,619 4,297
Rental deposits and other assets HEReREMEE 17 6,635 6,833
12,254 11,130
Current assets BN E
Inventories FE 16 164,114 143,474
Trade receivables B 5 EIEIA 17 113,588 124,206
Deposits, prepayments % - BR®
and other receivables T E b e Wk 17 24,346 36,363
Financial assets at fair value BARE TEqu)\
through profit or loss S T RIBE 18 1,672 -
Tax recoverable GGk 80 28
Pledged bank deposits EHAIRITIT 19 61,000 68,699
Cash and bank balances e RIRITHEER 20 154,360 121,677
519,160 494 447
Total assets HEE 531,414 505,577

The notes on pages 78 to 159 are an integral part of
these consolidated financial statements.

FET78E159R 2 M R FHE M mR < Eigsln -
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

=g ke E
For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-2-HEF+-A=t+—BLFE

EQUITY

Equity holders
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Other non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Taxation payable
Borrowings

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

2015 2014
—E—hF —T N4
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T FET T
Ega
BEREA
f&As 21 26,665 26,665
(e 22 358,461 324,412
aEs 385,126 351,077
&\
FRBAR
FEFRITBEE 24 137 323
HtIEmsas 3,737 3,223
3,874 3,546
id bR
B 5 R EMESFIE 25 66,641 73,164
FESTE IR 2,730 1,837
(E= 23 73,043 75,953
142,414 150,954
HWAaR 146,288 154,500
HERRAR 531,414 505,577
MENEERHE 376,746 343,493
HEERTHER 389,000 354,623
NE=A

The financial statements on pages 71 to 159 were 1R 10BN ERECHESeRN T —
approved by the board of Directors on 30 March 2016 =R THREEEeRE.

and were signed on its behalf:

Lai Guanglin
Director 2%

The notes on pages 78 to 159 are an integral part of
these consolidated financial statements.

Softpower International Limited

BHEBARDE

Yu Ben Ansheng Bi & 4%
Director 2%
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
SeEEREDx

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_ZT—RF+-A=1+—HILFE

Share
based
Shere  Share  Captdl  Merger  Statutoy  Other Exchange  payment  Refained
captal premum  reSeve  reSeve  feSeve  resenve  fesenve  resene  eamings Total
WA
ARt
RE KRR EABE SHEE iRRE EtRE EXRE SRE RIEN 88
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$000 HKS000  HK$000  HKS'000
Thr Thér ThEr ThEr T Thr TEr T TEr  TiEr
At1 January 2014 N-F-mE-A-A 26,066 126618 34,115 3,700 24 930 2,266 8,784 128126 331228
Proft for the year EREA - - - - - - - - ATy 1T
Other comprehensive income: A 2mka:
Actuarialoss on post-employment ERAENERmRE
beneft obligations, net oftax B RER - - - - - - - ]
Currency transiaton diferences FhpEEE - - - - - - (15 = -5
Release of exchange resenve: HERBARY
upon disposal of a subsidiary EiGE EA - - - - - - [1651) - - (1651)
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FE2ENGEE - - - - - ) (1809 - 279 19509
Transactions with owners: BEEALRS:
Share based payment WRD BRI - - - - - - -0 -3
Transfer upon lapse of share opfions RiEhEx s - - - - - - - By 3786 -
At 31 December 2014 RZF-METZA=1-A 26,066 126618 34,115 3,700 24 519 47 5338 153641 361,077

The notes on pages 78 to 159 are an integral part of FET78E159H 2 Mzt At EG A ISR 2 ZREEE S o

these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GelEEDE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_ZT—RF+-A=1+—HILFE

At1 January 2015

Profit for the year
Qther comprehensive income:
Actuarialloss on post-employment
beneft obligations, net of tax
Currency tranglation differences

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transactions with owners:
Share hased payment
Transfer upon lapse of share options

At 31 December 2015

N-F-R5-F-R

agEA
R
ERARIERORE
R
e

EREENELR
VR

HROAERANT
RERExIER

W_B-RF+-A=1-A

Share
hased
Share  Share  Capital  Merger Statutory  Other Exchange payment Retained
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  eamings Total
URIhE
Bl
k% ROEAR RABE AHER IEER KUEE EREE GG GERW 0 48
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$000
Tén TEnr THT TEnT TR TET TER TERT TEn TER
26,065 126618 34115 3700 % 519 457 5338 153641 351,077
- - - - - - - - 4023 3402
- - - - - (340) - - - (340)
- - - - - - A - - %
- - - - - (340) 246 - 023 3399
- - - - - - - 120 - 120
- - - - - - - (192 192 -
26,065 126618 34115 3,700 % 179 703 5206 187,856 385,126
F78E1590H ¢ M Rt FFE W EIMER 2 BEHD -

The notes on pages 78 to 159 are an integral part of

these consolidated financial statements.
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Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations
Interest paid

Interest received

Income tax paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Dividend income on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss
Net cash inflow for disposal of a subsidiary

Net cash generated from/(used in)
investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Drawdown of borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
Decrease in pledged bank deposits

Net cash generated from/(used in)
financing activities

Net increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Exchange differences

Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end
of the year

The notes on pages 78 to 159 are an integral part of

these consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
ﬁ = iﬂﬁl)lbzi

Note
BisE

BEEBZRGRE

REXGELZRS
ERFE

REE)s)

RARIFEEY

REFHELHLIFR
REAXBZRSRE

BAYE - BFE MK
ﬁE%¥ TS K2
RIGFTEFIR
BonEBEFAREZ
iﬂé?Z% %A
HE—HRBA
ﬁ@ﬁkﬁ%

27(a)

27(b)

REEHEL(FA)
B HE

MEIBZRERE

RAEE
BEEE

AR TR

REEEELE/(FTA)
REFE

R MREEHE
IR ER
PE S ERR
FN2RER
REEED 20

FRZEGRESERY
20

BHE—

For the year ended 31 December 2015
T-RAFTA=T+T—HIEFE

2015 2014
—E—-IF —PO4E
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T FAT
31,374 40,690
(1,363) (1,433)
1,440 998
(4,840) (3,739)
26,611 36,516
(3,913) (2,740)
278 90

49 =
4,615 1,162
1,029 (1,488)
414,232 348,183
(418,306) (368,991)
7,699 497
3,625 (20,311)
31,265 14,717
254 (79)
121,677 107,039
153,196 121,677

FET78E159A 2 MERUFHE

FATsERaR < BB RE D o
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General information

Softpower International Limited (formerly known
as China Pipe Group Limited) (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are
principally engaged in trading of construction
materials, mainly pipes and fittings.

The Company is a limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda. The address of its
registered office is Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda. The Company
has its primary listing on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Hong
Kong Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise
stated. These consolidated financial statements
have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 30 March 2016.

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in
the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
and under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, which are carried
at fair value.

Softpower International Limited BHEBERAF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERERME
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with  HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in
the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed
in Note 4.

The following amendments to standards
are mandatory for the Group’s financial year
beginning 1 January 2015. The adoption of these
amendments to standards does not have any
significant impact to the results and financial
position of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans:

Employee contribution
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of
2010-2012 Cycle HKFRSs
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of
2011-2013 Cycle HKFRSs

The Group has not applied any new standards
and amendments to standards that have been
issued but are not effective for the current
accounting period.

2.

& M B R

RREER SRR ()

AT EBTEMBRE LN RE - BEE
RETHERNG G - ETFEEEEEER
AEEETBRNBETELAE - P RIEH
s EEMENBRIH GRS M BERRBEKN
RERFEENER - D M4 AR -

AEBEER-_FT—RF— A B ZRMABNHT
BEEB R TINET 2 2R - B S HEH
EREPUBHRREERTE -

BAEEAF19% EREME  BRA

(BRI A)
“Z-THEFETCF ZRBBH B EA
B R (314
—2—5F3-%-=F LRBEMBREER
B FENE CCHEN)

AEBYEN ARG T HEERERDBMERE
R F TR RAERT RO R
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Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

The following new standards and amendments to
standards have been issued but are not effective
for the financial year beginning 1 January 2015
and have not been early adopted by the Group.
The Group is assessing the impact of these new

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERERME

RREER SRR ()

AT FHETERRETNENDBAEE-F
—HFE—A—BRROMBEFEERER - TIREK
REBRPRG - REB LA EFR]ER R E
FIHERINZEEE o

standards and amendments to standards.

HKFRS 9
Amendments to HKFRS 10
HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 10
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 11

HKFRS 14
HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27
(2011)

Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle

Financial Instruments?
Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an
Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture®
Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation Exception

Accounting for Acquisition of
Interest in Joint Operations’

Regulatory Deferral Accounts'

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Disclosure Initiative'

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation!

Agriculture: Bearer Plants'

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements'

Amendments to a number of
HKFRSs!

! effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2016

2 effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2018

3 effective date to be determined

Softpower International Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 "Accounts
and Audit" of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into operation
during the financial year, as a result, there are
changes to presentation and disclosures of
certain information in the consolidated financial
statements.

(@ Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity) over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to
the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement.
|dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date.

2.

& M B R

RREER SRR ()

RSN - FHEBRFUEDI (£ 622F)F 9BF[BRE M
BiH R EERATRFERNEX - Bik - &
HHBHRERNE TERNZHBMBEEEES -

(@ #=EIRE
MEAREAEESEAGERIENRE
TR(BELEBEEEE) EAKEREAER
BRFZ E R AE N Z R KM RS E A A
FOmmEs  WHE B BENZ TR
HORE 1) R B L 55 B 3R - N5 (B BDAE il 5%
FE - WEAREEGEEEEARAEEZ
BAEEAHAR - B AR EEHI#EKL L
AEELEE AR -

AEBMABEEBEKAHAR - BE
—MEBERARMERNEE RAEZEE
E - HREETHAMBAELENEE
RAEBEHEITHRAEEORAREE I
HENUEERREHERHMELNE
MEEMBENRAEER EXHEHT
PIBERABRNEENRAAZENAEBER
FHEE BEURERBERHNNAA
BEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERERME

2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(a)

Consolidation (cont’d)

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded
as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the
net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the
case of a bargain purchase, the difference
is recognised directly in the income
statement.

Inter-group transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by

the Group.

Softpower International Limited BHEBERAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(a)

(b)

Consolidation (cont’d)

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control,
any retained interest in the entity is re-
measured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The
fair value is the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting
for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted
for at cost less impairment. Cost includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in
a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating
who is responsible

for allocating resources and assessing

decision-maker,

performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the executive
directors of the Company that makes

strategic decisions.

2. WREERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERERME

2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(c) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial
statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions
or revaluation where items are
remeasured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the
income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(c) Foreign currency translation (cont’d)

(i)

Group companies

The results and financial position of
all the Group entities (none of which
has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional
currency different from the
presentation currency are translated
into the presentation currency as
follows:

= assets and liabilities for each
statement of financial position
presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

— income and expenses for
each income statement are
translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not
a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the
transactions); and
- all resulting exchange
differences are recognised in

other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERERME

2.

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(c)

Foreign currency translation (cont’d)

(i)

Group companies (cont’d)
On consolidation, exchange
differences arising from the translation
of the net investment in foreign
operations,

and other currency instruments

and of borrowings

designated as hedges of such
investments, are taken to other
comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate.
Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other

comprehensive income.

Disposal of foreign operation
On the disposal of a foreign
operation (that is, a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal
over a subsidiary

that includes a foreign operation, a

involving
loss of control

disposal involving loss of joint control
over a joint venture that includes
a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of significant influence
over an associate that includes a
foreign operation), all of the currency
translation differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the
company are reclassified to profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, comprising,
leasehold improvements, plant and
machinery, equipment, furniture and fixtures
and motor vehicles are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the assets.
Subsequent costs are included in the
asset’s carrying amount or recognised
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance expenses
are charged to the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in

which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property,
equipment is calculated using the straight-

plant and

line method to allocate their costs to their
residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

Plant, machinery and 3-10 years
equipment
Leasehold improvements 5 years or the
lease period,
if shorter
Office furniture, fixtures 3-5 years
and fittings
Office equipment 3-5 years
Computer equipment 3-5 years
Motor vehicles 3-10 years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERERME

2.

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(d)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)
The assets’ residual values and useful lives
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are
determined by comparing proceeds with
carrying amount and are recognised within
‘Other losses, net’ in the consolidated

income statement.

Impairment of investments in

subsidiaries and non-financial assets
Assets that have an indefinite useful life,
for example goodwill, are not subject
to amortisation and are at least tested
annually for impairment. Assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows
(i.e. CGUSs).

than goodwill that suffered an impairment

Non-financial assets other

are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(f)

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets
in the following categories: at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, and available-for-sale. The
classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification

of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are financial assets
held for trading. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling
in the short term. Derivatives are
classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as hedges.
Assets in this category are classified
as current assets if expected to
be settled within 12 months of the
balance sheet date; otherwise, they
are classified as non-current.

(i)  Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for
those with maturities greater than 12
months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-
current assets. The Group’s loans
and receivables include “trade and
bill receivables”, “other receivables
and deposits” and “cash and bank
balances” in the consolidated

statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERERME

2.

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(f)

Financial assets (cont’d)

(i)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets
are non-derivatives that are either
designated in this category or
not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-
current assets unless the investment
matures or management intends to
dispose of the investment within 12
months of the end of the reporting

period.

Regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on
the trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Investments are
initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are
initially recognised at fair value and
transaction costs are expensed in
the consolidated income statement.
Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows
from the investments have expired or
have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership. Available-
for-sale financial assets and financial
assets at fair value through profit or
loss are subsequently carried at fair
value. Loans and receivables are
subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest
method,
impairment.

less any provision for
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

() Financial assets (cont’d)

(i)

Available-for-sale financial assets
(cont’d)

Gains or losses arising from changes
in the fair value of the “Financial
assets at fair value through profit or
loss” category are presented in the
consolidated income statement in the
period in which they arise. Dividend
income from financial assets at fair
value through profit is recognised in
the consolidated income statement
as part of “Other losses, net” when
the Group’s right to receive payments
is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary
and non-monetary securities
classified as available-for-sale are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.

When securities classified as
available-for-sale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are
included in the income statement as
gains and losses from investment
securities.

Dividends on available-for-sale
equity instruments are recognised
in the income statement when the
Group’s right to receive payment is
established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERERME

2.

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(f)

(9)

Financial assets (cont’d)
(i) Available-for-sale financial assets

(cont’d)

For financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, the fair
values of quoted investments are
based on current bid prices. If the
market for a financial asset is not
active (and for unlisted securities),
the Group establishes fair value by
using valuation techniques. These
include the use of recent arm’s length
transactions, reference to other
instruments that are substantially the
same, discounted cash flow analysis,
and option pricing models, making
maximum use of market inputs and
relying as little as possible on entity-

specific inputs.

The Group assesses at the end of
each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired.

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership are retained
by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Receipts or payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives
paid to lessees or received from the lessor)
are recognised as income or expenses in
the consolidated income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the
lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(h)

(i)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost is determined
using the first-in, first-out (“FIFO”) method.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. A provision for impairment of
trade and other receivables is established
when there is objective evidence that the
Group will not be able to collect all amounts
due according to the original terms of
receivables. The amount of the provision is
the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount
of the assets is reduced through the use of
an allowance account, and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. When trade and other
receivables are uncollectible, they are
written off against the allowance account
for receivables. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited
to the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERERME

2.

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

1)

)

()

(m)

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents
include cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks and bank overdrafts. In
the consolidated statement of financial
position, bank overdrafts are shown within

borrowings in current liabilities.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Trade payables

Trade payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at
amortised cost; any difference between
the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective

interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after
the end of reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(n)

(0)

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs
directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leaves
Employee entitlements to annual
leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is
made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end
of reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick
leave and matemnity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERERME

2.

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(0)

Employee benefits (cont’d)

(i)

(i)

Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus
payments are recognised as a liability
when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result
of services rendered by employees
and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made.

Liabilities for bonus plans are
expected to be settled within twelve
months and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when
they are settled.

Pension obligations

Following the adoption of the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”)
Scheme in December 2000, all
employees of the Group employed in
Hong Kong joined the MPF Scheme.
Under this scheme, employees
and the Group are required to
make contributions to the scheme
calculated at 5% of the individual
employee’s monthly basic salaries,
subject to a cap of HK$1,500 which
was increased from HK$1,250 with
effective from 1 June 2014. The
Group’s contributions to this scheme
are expensed when they are due.
The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(0) Employee benefits (cont’d)

(i)

Pension obligations (cont’d)

The Group’s employees in the
People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) are covered by various
government sponsored pension
plans. These government agencies
are responsible for the pension
liabilities to these employees. The
relevant group companies pay
monthly contributions to these
pension plans based on certain
percentages of the salaries, subject to
a certain ceiling.

The employees employed by the
operations in Macau are members of
the government-managed retirement
benefits schemes operated by the
Macau government. The Macau
operations are required to pay a
monthly fixed contribution to the
retirement benefits schemes to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement
benefits schemes operated by the
Macau government is to make the
required contributions under the
schemes.

Under these plans, the Group has
no legal or constructive obligation
to make further payments once the
required contributions have been
paid. Contributions to these plans are
expensed as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERERME

2.

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(0)

Employee benefits (cont’d)

(iv)

Share-based payment

The Group operates an equity-
settled, share-based compensation
plan, under which the entity receives
services from employees as
considerations for equity instruments
(options) of the Group. The fair value
of the employee services received
in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fair
value of the options granted:

o including any market
performance conditions (for
example, an entity’s share
price);

° excluding the impact of any
service and non-market
performance vesting conditions
(for example, profitability, sales
growth targets and remaining
an employee of the entity over a
specified time period); and

° including the impact of any non-
vesting conditions (for example,
the requirement for employees
to save or holding shares for a
specified period of time).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(0) Employee benefits (cont’d)

(iv)

Share-based payment (cont’d)
The total
over the vesting period, which is the

expense is recognised
period over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are to be satisfied.
At the end of each reporting period,
the entity revises its estimates of
the number of options that are
expected to vest based on the non-
market performance and service
conditions. It recognises the impact
of the revision of original estimates, if
any, in the income statement with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the
Company issues new shares. The
proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital (nominal
value) and share premium.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BERERME

2.

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(9)

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises
current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised
in the consolidated income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity, respectively.

(i) Current income tax

The current income tax charge
is calculated on the basis of the
tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the statement of financial
position date in the places where
the Company and its subsidiaries
operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid

to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(P) Current and deferred income tax
(cont’d)

(i)

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised
using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements.
However, the deferred income tax
is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using
tax rates and laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by
the statement of financial position
date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset
is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BERERME

2.

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(9)

Current and deferred income tax
(cont’d)

(i)

(i)

Deferred income tax (cont’d)
Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are
provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investments
in subsidiaries except for deferred
income tax liability where the timing
of the

difference

reversal of the temporary
is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Generally
the Group is unable to control the
reversal of the temporary difference
for associates.

Deferred income tax assets are
recognised on deductible temporary
differences arising from investments
in subsidiaries only to the extent
that it is probable the temporary
difference will reverse in the future
and there is sufficient taxable profit
available against which the temporary
difference can be utilised.

Offsetting
Deferred income tax assets and
liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either
the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to
settle the balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(a)

()

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the
Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation, and the
amount has been reliably estimated.

Provisions are measured at the present
value of the expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

Revenue and income recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of
the consideration received or receivable,
and represents amounts receivable for
goods and services supplied, stated net
of discounts, returns and value added
taxes. The Group recognises revenue
when the amount of revenue can be
it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow

reliably measured; when

to the entity; and when specific criteria
have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below. The Group
bases its estimates of return on historical
results, taking into consideration the type of
customer, the type of transaction and the
specifics of each arrangement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERERME

2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

U]

(s)

Revenue and income recognition (cont’d)
(i) Sale of goods are recognised when
goods are delivered to customers, the
customer has accepted the products
and collectibility of the
receivables is reasonably assured.

related

(i) Interest income is recognised on
a time-proportion basis using the
effective interest method.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability in
the Group’s and the Company’s financial
statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or

directors, where

appropriate.

3. Financial risk management

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety
of financial risks: market risk (including
foreign currency risk and interest rate risk),
credit and counterparty risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s financial risk management
focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance by actively managing debt
level and cash flow in order to maintain a
strong financial position and minimising
refinancing and liquidity risks by attaining
healthy debt
appropriate maturity profile and availability

repayment capacity,

of banking facilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)
(@  Market risk

U)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates principally
in Hong Kong and in Macau
and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from
various Currency exposures,
primarily with respect to the
United States dollars (“USD”),
Macau pataca (“MOP”) and
Renminbi (“RMB”). Foreign
exchange risk mainly arises
from future commercial
transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities, which are
denominated in a currency that
is not the functional currency
of the group entities. In order
to mitigate the foreign currency
risk, the Group has been closely
monitoring its foreign currency
exposure and requirements and
will arrange for any hedging
facilities if necessary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERERME

3.

Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.1

Financial risk factors (cont’d)
Market risk (cont’d)

@

U)

Foreign exchange risk (cont’d)
As HKD is pegged against
USD and MOP, the Group is
exposed to limited exchange
rate fluctuation. As a result, the
exchange rate risk exposure in
respect of USD and MOP are
not significant. While for RMB,
the exchange rate fluctuation
is relatively volatile. At 31
December 2015, if RMB had
strengthened/weakened by
5% (2014: 5%) against HKD
with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit would
have been HK$631,000 higher/
lower (2014: post-tax profit of
HK$1,365,000 higher/lower)
respectively mainly as a result
of foreign exchange gains/
losses on translation of RMB-
denominated financial assets
and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)
(@  Market risk (cont’d)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s income and
operating cash flows are
substantially independent of
changes in market interest
rates and the Group has no
significant interest-bearing
assets except for the bank
balances and deposits, details
of which have been disclosed in
Notes 19 and 20. The Group’s
exposure to changes in interest
rates is also attributable to its
borrowings, details of which
have been disclosed in Note
283. Borrowings carry at floating
rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest-rate risk
whereas those carry at fixed
rates expose the Group to
fair value interest-rate risk.
As at 31 December 2015,
approximately 29% (2014: 34%)
of the Group’s borrowings were
carried at floating rates and
expose the Group to cash flow
interest-rate risk. The Group
has not used any interest rate
swaps to hedge its exposure
against cash flow interest-rate
risks.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BERERME

3.

Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.1

Financial risk factors (cont’d)

@

(b)

Market risk (cont’d)

(i)  Interest rate risk (cont’d)
As at 31 December 2015, if
interest rate has increased/

decreased by 25 basis points

with all other variables held
constant, profit for the year
ended 31 December 2015

would have been HK$44,000
(2014: HK$54,000) lower/
higher, mainly as a result of
increase/decrease in interest

expense on borrowings.

Credit and counterparty risk

Credit risk mainly arises from
bank deposits, trade and other
receivables, and other deposits. The
carrying amounts of these balances
substantially represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit and
counterparty risk in relation to

financial assets.

As at 31 December 2014 and 2015,
all the bank deposits are deposited
in high quality financial institutions
without significant credit risk. The
credit risk on bank deposits is limited
because over 63% of the Group’s
bank balances are placed with
subsidiaries of state-owned banks
and others are placed with reputable
financial institutions. Management
does not expect any loss from non-

performance of these banks.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)

(b)

(©

Credit and counterparty risk (cont’d)
In order to minimise the credit risk,
the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue
trade and other receivables. In
addition, the Group reviews regularly
the recoverable amount of each
individual trade and other receivables
to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. Rental deposits made to
landlords are also considered to be of
low risk. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced. The Group has no
significant concentration of credit risk,
with exposure spread over a number
of counterparties and customers.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management
includes maintaining sufficient cash
and availability of funding from an
adequate amount of committed credit
facilities. Management maintains
rolling forecast of the Group’s liquidity
reserves which comprises undrawn
banking facilities and cash and cash
equivalents, on the basis of expected
cash flows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBS HRRME

3. Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)
(c)  Liquidity risk (cont’d)

The table below analyses the Group’s
financial liabilities into relevant
maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the date of
financial reporting to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed
in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

At 31 December 2015 R=EB-R1%£+-RA=+-H

Trade and other payables 25 REMENFIE

Borrowings B8
Interest payment EEZREXN
on borrowings
At 31 December 2014 RZE-MF+-A=1—H

Trade and otherpayables B 5 REMENFIE

Borrowings &8
Interest payment BEZHEL
on borrowings
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or
sell assets to reduce debit.

Consistent with others in the industry, the
Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total
borrowings divided by total equity.

The Group’s strategy was to maintain a
solid capital base to support the operations
and development of its business in the long
term. Given its existing principal business,
management considers a gearing ratio
as measured by total borrowings to total
equity of not more than 50% as solid and
reasonable. The table below analyses the
Group’s capital structure at 31 December
2014 and 2015 as follows:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERERME

3.

Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.2 Capital risk management (cont’d)

3.3

Total borrowings BEE
Total equity farEns
Gearing ratio BEBELR

Note:

Decrease in gearing ratio during the year is a
result of the decrease in total borrowings and the
increase in total equity.

Fair value estimation

The carrying value of trade and other
receivables, bank balances and deposits,
trade and other payables and borrowings
are a reasonable approximation of their fair
values. The fair value of financial liabilities
for disclosure purposes is estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash
flows at the current market interest rate that
is available to the Group for similar financial
instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.3 Fair value estimation (cont’d)

The table below analyses the Group’s
financial instruments carried at fair value as
at 31 December 2015 by level of the inputs
to valuation techniques used to measure
fair value. Such inputs are categorised into
three levels within a fair value hierarchy as
follows:

- quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or
liabilities (level 1)

- inputs other than quoted prices
that are
observable for the asset or liability,

included within level 1

either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices)
(level 2)

= inputs for the asset and liability that
are not based on observable market
data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3)

Financial assets SREE
— Investment funds —KRERES

There were no transfers between levels 1
and 2 during the year.
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Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.3 Fair value estimation (cont’d)

The fair value of financial instruments that
are not traded in an active market (for
example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined by using valuation techniques.
These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on
entity specific estimates. It includes quoted
market price or dealer quotes for similar
instruments. If all significant inputs required
to fair value an instrument are observable,
the instrument is included in level 2.

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities of the Group are
discussed below.

(@) Provision for impairment of trade and

other receivables

The policy for provision for impairment of
trade and other receivables of the Group
is based on the evaluation of collectability
and on management’s judgement. A
considerable amount of judgement is
required in assessing the ultimate realisation
of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each counterparty. If the financial
conditions of the counterparties were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of
their ability to make payments, additional
allowances may be required.

Softpower International Limited BHEBRERAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (cont’d)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Provision for impairment of inventories
The management of the Group reviews
the marketability of inventory items at
the end of each reporting period, and
makes allowance for obsolete and slow-
moving inventory items identified that
are no longer suitable for sale. The
management estimates the net realisable
value for inventories based primarily on the
latest invoice prices and current market
conditions. The Group carries out an
inventory review on a product-by-product
basis at the end of each reporting period
and makes provision for obsolete items.

Provision for bonus and customer
claims

Management reviews the provision for
bonus and customer claims at the end
of each reporting period to determine
whether the provision is adequate based
on historical experience and most reliable
estimates. Significant judgement is required
in determining the provision for bonus and
customer claims.

Employee benefits — share based
payments

The determination of the fair value of the
share options granted requires estimates
in determining the expected volatility of
the share price, the dividends expected
on the shares, the risk-free interest rate
for the life of the option and the number of
share options that are expected to become
exercisable as stated in Note 21(b). Where
the outcome of the number of options that
are exercisable is different, such difference
will impact the consolidated income
statement in the subsequent remaining
vesting period of the relevant share options.

4., MREE

(b)

()

(d)

i & M55 R M

FH&EH R FIER (7)

FERERE
AEEEEEREERPRERFERR
ZHEMBRUHBERSTHBESHEZB
R HETmETRE EEETER
BRI ZEZERRBAMRAGETFE
2 Tl & fﬁa&@ AEENEZ2HRMREAE
BREMENTHFERZ  LTHBRMEED
Y

AREFEERE

ERERE
Al

ERMREZICARET P HE
RRTKEBRRAISNHERERE
B MREARTFHERE
Ev : ﬁxiﬁﬂ’\]#ﬂﬁﬁ =

BERF - LURGOBERNK

BERLBRENAAEAMGRERS
HRBIRE - BEFBRDIRMTORE - B
RETT {32 B O S LB M) 2 Ko FRET A 1T REAY
BREH A ZRAXRIINKE21(b) » WER
ATITENBREZEEMRE X8
£ 7 8 B AU L 1R R SR A0 57 I8 A 0 S i
BREKRBTE -
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Segment information

The Group determines its operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the chief
operating decision-maker that are used to make
strategic decisions. The chief operating decision-
maker has been identified as the executive
directors of the Company. The chief operating
decision-maker assesses the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company.

During the vyear, the Group has only one
reportable segment, which is trading of pipes
and fittings. Trading of pipes and fittings includes
wholesale, retail and logistics operations
substantially in Hong Kong and Macau.

Geographical information

The Group is domiciled in Hong Kong. The
Group’s revenue from external customers by
geographical location are detailed below:

Hong Kong B
Macau BRFT

Softpower International Limited BHEBRERAF
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SBEH

REEIREELCERRENEMWRE AL RR
RREETHEENE - AR ERREWRE
RARBIZHITES - EREERREREAR
AIRAEIS A ABIERFIAGGTZ 2 BN SR -

RERN AEEREREEEREGHES —HA
TEFRNHH  c BEEREHEZIBIEETEEEH
FRP 2z #tE - TERYIREL ©

1 B8 25 ZR &
AEBERNER - AEERME D HHIK B IMNED
BEFEWALT

Revenue

A

For the year ended
31st December

B8EF+_-_A=1+—HLFE

2015 2014
—Z—hEF —T g
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#T FHT
511,184 468,503
100,350 85,342
611,534 553,845




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Segment information (cont’d) 5.

Geographical information (cont’d)
The Group’s non-current assets by geographical

location are detailed below:

Hong Kong
Mainland China

Other losses, net

Net exchange loss

Net (loss)/gain on disposal
of property, plant and
equipment

Loss on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Dividend income from financial
assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Loss on disposal of a subsidiary
(Note 27(b))

Others

i & M55 R M

SWBEH (&)

HED FPE R (F)

REERIE D B IERBEENT -

2015 2014
—E-hF —F—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fi#T FHBT
&5 10,055 8,484
R B A 2,199 2,646
12,254 11,130
6. HMEIRBHE
2015 2014
—E—-RF —T-mEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T FBT
bE H E5i8) 558 (2,101) (1,201)
LEME BMERREZ
(B18), W F 8
(127) 87
BARBEFABZRZ
TREEBR (94) -
BAREBEFABREZ
SREEZREWA
49 =
& — IR B A BV SR
(M5E27(b) - @871)
Ho 366 124
(1,907) (1,861)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B H R

7. Expenses by nature

Operating profit is arrived at after charging:

Cost of inventories sold (Note 16)
Auditor’s remuneration:

— Audit services

— Non-audit servies
Depreciation of property, plant

and equipment (Note 13)

Employee benefit expenses (Note 8)
Operating lease payments (Note 13)

Provision for impairment of trade
and other receivables, net

Provision for impairment of
inventories, net

Other expenses

Representing:
Cost of sales
Selling and distribution costs

7. BAXHMHE

BHEZFERA (MiEE16)
ZEFET NS :
— BizBRTS
—EEZR
M - BB REETE
(FF5E13)
BTEAM%Z (K:Es)
KEHEBA (HFE13)
B 5 Kk E b FEUGRIE
BB R EFRE
FEREREFE

HAFIS

&
HEMA
HE R SHRAR

General and administrative expenses — /& M1 T E

Softpower International Limited BHEBRERAF

MR TIIRBRESR ¢

2015 2014
—Z—hEF —T g
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#T FHT
435,239 406,494
1,192 1,108
145 131
2,178 1,409
68,991 63,539
19,404 17,687
860 43
1,316 1,078
40,673 34,085
569,998 525,574
445,801 416,116
23,226 19,032
100,971 90,426
569,998 525,574




Employee benefit expenses

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BERRME

Wages and salaries

Pension costs — defined

contribution plans

Share based payment (Note 21(b))

(a)

Five highest paid individuals

8. {ERIEFIFRAX

TENFE
BIARERAN — ERHEKETE

AR B R 2 A 50 (95 21 (b))

(a)

The five individuals whose emoluments

were the highest in the Group for the year

include three (2014 three) directors whose

emoluments are reflected in the analysis

shown in Note 30. The emoluments paid to

the remaining two (2014: two) individuals

were as follows:

Salaries and other short-term
employee benefits

Discretionary bonus

Pension costs — defined
contribution plans

Share based payment

e MEMEHREREN

ByBTEAT
BASRAN - ERHERETE

VAR AR 7R ERE RO 3R

2015 2014
—Z=—hF N
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
66,823 61,405
2,048 1,794
120 340
68,991 63,539
AfuREEHEAL
RER AREBRURSHFALTEE=A
—ENE: =) EF HFESERH

A0 DM R - XN FEB_M(=F
—PEE ) AL ZBE T

2015 2014

k- -2k 8- —E—p4
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T FHBT
2,868 2,986

570 788

32 15

38 92

3,508 3,881
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERERME

8. Employee benefit expenses (cont’d) 8. ERWFIFMXZ ()

(a)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals (cont’d) (@ HiuE=EFHAL(E)
The emoluments of the two (2014: two) —H(ZENFE: R mag ALZH
individuals fell within the following bands: [ s NI S
2015 2014

—E-5%¥ —T—mF
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T —2,000,000 /& 7T 2 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 77T — 2,500,000 /& 7T - 1
Senior management remuneration by b) SREBAEFMESHE
band
The remuneration of senior management fell FEREEA BN ZHMN T T5EE :

within the following bands:

2015 2014
—E-1%F —T—F

Nil - HK$1,000,000 % — 1,000,000 7T -
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 77T — 1,500,000 7 7T 3 3

HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 7T —2,000,000 % 7T 2
5 5

9. Finance costs, net 9. MERASH

2015 2014
—Z—hF —T—pg
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Bank interest income RITHEHA (1,282) (1,267)
Interest expense on bank borrowings $R1TEE 2 &5 ¢ 1,326 1,586
44 319

Softpower International Limited BHEBRERAF



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the
rate of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profit for the year. Taxation on
overseas profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profit for the year at the
rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

i & M55 R M

10. Tax expense 10. MIAXH
2015 2014
—E—-hF —T—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TH#T FHIT
Current taxation: BIEATHIE :
Hong Kong profits tax BBFTSH 5,147 3,939
Overseas tax YEINIE 550 417
Over-provision in prior years AR SFE %1% (16) (109)
Total current tax BNEATHIE 4858 5,681 4,247
Deferred taxation (Note 24): IR IA (fi5E24) -
Origination and reversal of TREREERED
temporary differences (119) 115
Tax expense MEZ 5,562 4,362

B RIS BASE P 5 A SR B PR 2 16.5%
—T— 4 16.5%) 5HHE < BHNBUETRIEF
P2 R BRI A R B S EBRR 2T
TR -
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10. Tax expense (cont’d)

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would

10. MIAZH (M)

arise using the Hong Kong profits tax rate as

follows:

Profit before income tax

Tax calculated at tax rate of
16.5% (2014: 16.5%)

Effect of different tax rates in other
jurisdictions

Utilisation of previously
unrecognised tax loss

Unrecognised tax losses

Tax effect of income not subject to
taxation

Tax effect of expenses not
deductible for taxation purposes

Over-provision in prior years

Tax expense

BHERERA A

Tt A A1)

1#216.5% (ZZ—W4F : 16.5%)
MEE 218
HAh FAM T MR E
T 2 g2
£ A SERTARTER 2 IR EE

RERTIAE IR
BARN WA AT E

TAHIB X Z RIRF &

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERERME

AEBERBAGHN 2 HAXHEBRERBES
MSHEMETE 2 Eimi B =T

2015 2014
—E—hEF —E—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T FHBT
39,585 26,091
6,531 4,305
(534) (376)
(1,275) (401)
589 701

(214) (118)

481 360

(16) (109)

5,562 4,362




11.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Earnings per share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings
per share is based on the profit for the year
attributable to equity holders and weighted
average number of shares with adjustments
where applicable as follows:

Profit attributable to equity holders of 3

the Company for the purpose of IREREE A&
basic earnings per share
Number of shares 370 A= |

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares for the purpose
of basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by
adjusting the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding to assume
conversion of dilutive potential ordinary shares
arising from the Company’s share options.
Diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2015 equal basic earnings
per share as the exercise of the outstanding
share options would be anti-dilutive.

The weighted average number of ordinary
shares and basic earnings per share for the year
ended 31 December 2014 has been adjusted
retrospectively to reflect the impact of share
consolidation effected on 19 January 2015 (Note
21).

11.

ATHEREARF AR

AEERENERZ
Epaleenpdiil: Sealie:

& M55 R

mEER

TRIRETEERERBAH RESRBF THIREF

AREEE ARG RF KRB EBITE AR 2 Y
HRE (FERFTUAFE) :

2015 2014

—E—-hF —T—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FAIT

34,023 21,729

Thousand Thousand

T T

1,333,270 1,333,270

AAEESREEANE - B BITERBZ INE
ﬁﬁﬁx%ﬂ’ﬁﬁ.ﬂ%& LME““FﬁﬁH%T*/%ﬁZ*

TTREBREERYER - BE T —UFER—
—hF+_-H :-I—— H JJ:EWIEE ’ Ifﬂiﬂiﬁ
EEREARBEFE  AUMEFE 2 SHH#

BRNGEMERERRF -

HE_Z—NOF+-A=-t+—HILFEZLERD
MiEFHRE R TR B FIE 1L B8 AR R
R-_ZE—AFE—ATNBEHRZBRHAHZFE
(MfzE21) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERERME

12. Dividend 12. BRR
At the Board meeting held on 30 March 2016, R-ZE—ARFE=ZA=+HEBTHNESTESZ L
the Board did not recommend the payment of a EE e TSI E—_E—hE+=_A=1—
final dividend for the year ended 31 December HIEFEZRHARE(ZE—HF : ) -

2015 (2014: Nil).

13. Property, plant and equipment 13. ¥ - BERRE
Plant, Office furniture,
machinery ~ Leasehold fixtures and Officc  Computer
and equipment - improvements fittings ~ equipment  equipment Motor vehicles Total
HE #3 BOZRE

RBR HAWREE RERGR @ XBRE  REGR RE #E
HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000

TER TR TER TER TRT TR TR

Cost BE

At 1 January 2015 W=E-1%-A-A 4,359 10,048 o7 20 8,622 4,954 2,120
Exchange differences ERER - - @) - il 20 (26)
Additons HE 9% 97 - a 146 2,690 3913
Disposdls ik (885) (667) (31) 20) (4,523) (802) (6934

At 31 December 2015 NZE-RETZA=1-R 3,567 10,338 875 n 4444 6,822 2%,073

Accumulated depreciation  REHE

At January 2015 NF-n5-A-A 372 9,167 860 20 1947 3,104 282
Exchange difierences EfZE - - “ - ] (13 (19)
Charge for the year TEERE 39 340 k) 4 20 1,143 2178
Disposals & (883) (535) (37 (20 (4529 (531) (6,529)

At 31 December 2015 W_F-RF+-A=1-A 3211 8972 851 4 3713 3,703 20,454

Net book value B

At 31 December 2015 W_E-RF+-A=1-A 356 1,366 2% 28 7 3119 5,619
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BERRME

13. Property, plant and equipment

13. ¥% - BB Bax s (i)

(cont’d)
Plant, (Office fumiture,
machinery Leasehold ~ fixtures and Office Computer
and equipment  improvements fitings equipment equipment  Motor vehicles Total
fiz e BATHM
kit HEMERE  RERGE bC Bl ik g
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'00D  HKE'O0O
TR TR T TR ThRL ThR TR

Cost R

At January 2014 N-5-MmE-A-A 8,614 1,14 914 101 8,803 3,967 33,544
Exchange differences EiEE (106) ®) Q ? 1) 20 (174)
Addtions hE 543 7 5 - 8 1432 2740
Disposals il (642 (149 - - - - %)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-FHERT

(Note 27(o) (Kiik7p) (4,050} (1629 - 19 ?) (425 (6,200
At 31 December 2014 NZE-BETZA=1-H 4359 10048 917 2 8,820 4954 29120
Accumulated depreciation &

At 1 January 2014 NE-mE-A-R 6,29 9,849 830 7 7,687 3027 21,762
Exchange differences EiEE (62) 20) @ 1) - (10) (95)
Charge for the year KEENE 478 283 R 2 27 U7 1409
Disposals il (639) (149 - - - - (781)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—TEHBAR (7))

(Note 27(0) (2,345) (797) - (7) U] (260) (3,466)
At 31 December 2014 RZE-BETZA=1-H 372 9,167 860 2 7947 3104 24,823
Net book value RESE
At 31 December 2014 RZE-BET-A=1-H 634 881 57 - 875 1850 4297

Lease rentals amounting to HK$19,224,000
(2014: HK$17,502,000) and HK$180,000 (2014:
HK$185,000) relating to the lease of property and
motor vehicles respectively are included in the
consolidated income statement (Note 7).

HYyEMAIEHEFENEERE DA A
19,224,000 7T (ZZ—M4F : 17,502,000 77T )
180,000/ C(=F—MM4 : 185,000/ L) * I
BIEEGRAWERS (FIFE7) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERERME

14. Subsidiaries 14. B AT
Details of principal subsidiaries which, in the BEERAUAREB  E£EN /IR -_E—HF
Directors’ opinion, materially affect the results T A=+t HZFEEBREATE T EM/
and/or net assets of the Group as at 31 BARZ FEIEERMIFES2 ©

December 2015, are set out in Note 32.

15. Financial instruments by category 15. BRERESHEMT R
2015 2014
—E-RF —E-mEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
Loans and receivables ERER B FTHET BT
Assets as per consolidated eI R EE
statement of financial position
Trade receivables, deposits B RUGRIAE - He &k
and other receivables E h pE U RIE 128,366 137,925
Financial assets at fire value BARBEFAEBS SRMEE
through profit or loss (Note 18) (FFE18) 1,672 =
Pledged bank deposits (Note 19)  #K3HER7 7772 (Fi7£19) 61,000 68,699
Cash and bank balances & RiR1THEE (H15E20)
(Note 20) 154,360 121,677
Total R 345,398 328,301
2015 2014
—2—iF —F0F
HK$’000 HK$’000
Other financial liabilities HthMB AR THERT FHT
Liabilities as per consolidated mEMBRARAREE
statement of financial position
Trade and other payables B 5 R EAMEFRIE 62,947 69,470
Borrowings (Note 23) &8 (MiEE23) 73,043 75,953
Total Rk 135,990 145,423
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16.

17.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Inventories

Merchandises EER
At 31 December 2015,
impairment of inventories amounted to
approximately HK$21,119,000 (2014:
HK$20,093,000).

the provision for

The cost of inventories recognised as expenses
and included in cost of sales amounted to
HK$435,239,000 (2014:HK$406,494,000) (Note
7).

Trade and other receivables

B 5 IR
B R

Trade receivables
Less: provision for impairment

Trade receivables — net

Prepayments TR

Consideration receivable from

B S UG IR — %

16.

17.

#

H & — M B AR

i & M55 R M

#R
2015 2014
—Z2—1%F —TmF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#x TAT
164,114 143,474

R-E—RE+-_A=1+—8 FEEREEEBLD
# 21,119,000 7t ( —Z —PU4F : 20,093,000 75
JL) °

BRESZ W AFERRNIB TN 2 FENR AR E
435,239,00078 7T ( == — U4 : 406,494,000/5
7T) (FtsE7) °

disposal of a subsidiary
(Note 27 (b))

Loan to an employee

Loan to a third party

Other receivables, deposits and
other assets

Rental deposits

Less: non-current portion

HHE UK (FIRE 27 (b))

BRXTF—UET

BERFT—RE=H
H o fEUGRIA

ReREMEE
HEZS

B FERE R

HEHREMEKRIEA
2015 2014
—EZ—hEF —E—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T FHBT
114,765 125,025
(1,177) (819
113,588 124,206
16,203 29,477
- 4,615
1,542 =
4,745 =
3,868 4,559
4,623 4,545
30,981 43,196
144,569 167,402
(6,635) (6,833)
137,934 160,569

—ZT—HFFFH Annual Report 2015
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17. Trade and other receivables (cont’d)

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, other
receivables and rental deposits approximate their
fair values.

The loan to an employee is unsecured, interest-
free and repayable within one year.

The loan to a third party is secured by certain
assets of the third party, bearing interest at
commercial rate and repayable within one year.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade
and other receivables are denominated in the
following currencies:

Hong Kong dollars BT
RVB AR
USD =
MOP RPIEE
Others HAb

The Group generally grants credit period of 60-
120 days to its customers for its trading of pipes
and fittings operation. The ageing analysis of the
trade receivables based on the due date is as
follows:

Softpower International Limited BHEBRERAF

17.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERERME

B RAERRIE ()

BHRWHA - R FAREER S 2R
CRERFAABERS -

ERTUEBTUEER REL—FREER -

ERXRTREZNIHZBE=ZITNEEEL

1 SEEEERAER—ENEE -

AEEE S REMRYHRIAZ RESEIA TIIE

WHHE

2015 2014
“Z—1F —T-MmF
HK$’000 HK$'000
Fi&x TAET
116,963 136,336
16,408 6,731
6,794 15,376
4,404 7,472

- 1,487

144,569 167,402

AEE-RETEENEHBESIEBREPZEE
HIRB0 £ 120K - EHRUGIZEIH A Z Rk D

o



17. Trade and other receivables (cont’d)

Within credit period EEHA

1 to 30 days 1 RXE30K
31 to 60 days 31 XE60X
61 to 90 days 61 XZE 90K
91 to 120 days 91 RE120K
Over 120 days BiE 120K

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i & M55 R M

17. BHRHEMERIA (&)

Trade receivables that are current or past
due less than four months are not considered
impaired. As of 31 December 2015, trade
receivables of HK$32,182,000 (2014:
HK$36,577,000) were past due but not
considered to be impaired. These relate to a
number of independent customers for whom
there is no recent history of default. The ageing
analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

2015 2014
“Z—-1F —T-MmF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F&x TAET
81,406 87,629
21,615 23,631
5,753 6,828
1,394 3,153
297 256
4,300 3,628
114,765 125,025

s e A @A A T2 B SR KIETEE
EBERE - HEZE-_TE—AF+=_A=+—8"
Z 5 fE IR 3 T832,182,000/8 L ( = F — PO 4F :
36,577,000/ 7T ) B @ BME R R ARE © %5
RIBEL—HEN i B IR Sk B R B o
ZEB HREWGRIEZRRAMAT

1 to 30 days 1RE30K
31 to 60 days 31 RE60X
61 to 90 days 61 XZE 90X
91 to 120 days 91 RE120K
Over 120 days HBim 120K

2015 2014
—E—-hF —T U
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHT FET
21,615 23,631
5,753 6,828
1,394 2,168

297 256

3,123 2,709
32,182 36,577

—ZT—HFFFH Annual Report 2015
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17. Trade and other receivables (cont’d)

As at 31 December 2015, trade receivables
of HK$1,177,000 (2014: HK$819,000) were
impaired and provided for. The individually
impaired receivables mainly relate to customers
which have significant delay in repayment or are
in unexpected difficult financial situations. These
receivables are past due more than 120 days.

Movements on the provision for impairment of
trade receivables are as follows:

At 1 January Rn—H—H
Provision for impairment B

Receivables written off
during the year as uncollectible

At 31 December

The addition and release of provision for impaired
receivables have been included in general and
administrative expenses in the consolidated
income statement. Amounts charged to the
provision account are generally written off when
there is no expectation of recovering additional
cash.

As at 31 December 2015, other receivables
of HK$502,000 (2014: Nil) were impaired and
provided for. The individually impaired receivables
have significant delay in repayment. These
receivables are past due more than 120 days.

Save as above, the other classes within trade and
other receivables do not contain impaired assets.

Softpower International Limited BHEBRERAF

17.

F Y FE AR IR 2R BB W 1 T 5

R+=—A=+—8

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERERME

B RAERRIE ()

W_ZE—hFE+-A=+—08 E5rkzE
1,177,000 7T (=& —PE4 : 819,000/87T) EAE
BEEE o AR B RERYGRIEE ZHE KNEE
BRARNEALEBERNE 2 TFER - 25 R
SRIE B ERR G 120 K ©

B HRUGRZ BIEREZEIT

2015 2014
—Z—hEF —T g
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#T FHT
819 1,363

358 43

- (587)

1,177 819

SRR IR FE MR R 2 BT T AR S
W RAZ —REITBER - REERS RN
SE—RRAR TS WD ERINR S FHEH o

W-ZE—hAFE+-_A=+—8 HipEkzE
HK$502,000 (== — U4 : ) EEREREE -
ERERERKFERSE KIERERE] - %5
PR IB 8 BAAIA 120 K ©

B EsIASN - 5 K Bt FE MR IR O EL A 4R 513
BEFDREEE °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

17. Trade and other receivables (cont’d)

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date is the fair value of each class of
receivables mentioned above. Save as disclosed
above, the Group does not hold any collateral as
security.

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

k>
>

Investment funds REES
at fair value — unlisted

Pledged bank deposits

As at 31 December 2015, bank deposits
of HK$61,000,000 (2014: HK$48,000,000)
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
bank deposits of Nil (2014: HK$20,699,000)
denominated in Renminbi were pledged as
collateral for the Group’s banking facilities (Note
23).

The effective interest rate on pledged bank
deposits was 0.5% (2014: 1.45%) per annum
and these deposits are matured within 8 to 195
days (2014: 9 to 89 days).

L\

BE-JFLM

i & M55 R M

17. BHRHEMERIA (&)

K& Rz REEERR R LGS RRKGRIA
ZRffE - B EXFIRESN - AEEYERSAE
(Al 3 am R o

18. HARREMARRZEMEE

2015 2014
—2-1F —E-mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T TAT
1,672 -

19. BEHEBITER

RZZF—AF+=-A=+—H 61,000,000 7T
—Z—PY4F : 48,000,000 7C) LABTLAHE & E
(=Z—DY4F : 20,699,000/ 7T) AAREEZ
RITHEARE TAER - (ERAEBIRITEERE
PR (MisE23) °

BEEFRTERZEBRNEAFR05% (=
—PU4F : 1.45%)  WEFRZEHENF8XRE
195K (=ZF—J04F : 9 KE89K) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERERME

20. e RBITHRER

20. Cash and bank balances

Cash and bank balances W& RIRTTERS (TRIERITES)

(excluding bank overdrafts)

Maximum exposure to credit risk HEAZNREEEERR

2015 2014
—Z—-1F —E-mF
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#x THET
154,360 121,677
154,215 121,455

Cash and cash equivalents included the following

for the purposes of the statement of cash flows: IERE :

RIREMERME R MRSFEVERETI

2015 2014

—E—-hF —ZT—mF

HK$’000 HK$'000

TH#T FBT

Cash and bank balances & RIRITHEER 154,360 121,677
Bank overdrafts (Note 23) HRITHEZ (FizE23) (1,164) =
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEY 153,196 121,677

The carrying amounts of the Group and the
Company’s cash and bank balances are ATEEE

denominated in the following currencies:

REBRARRZRE RIRITHERZ RA SRR

2015 2014

—E—hF —ZT U4

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FH&TT

Hong Kong dollars BIT 135,586 98,572
RMB AR 11,903 19,784
usD ETT 3,921 94
Others Hib 2,950 3,227
154,360 121,677

Softpower International Limited BHEBRERAF
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20. Cash and bank balances (cont’d)

21.

The conversion of RMB denominated balances
into foreign currencies and the remittance of
these funds out of Mainland China is subject to
the exchange control restrictions imposed by the
PRC government.

i & M55 R M

20. BEeRBITHEER(E)

BAARESEZ G A BRAINEREZEES
PE R B A - 2B R BB E i 2 INEE FFe
FEFRPR ©

Share capital 21. =&
Number of
shares issued
BBITROEE
Thousands HK$’000
TR FH&TT
At 1 January and RZZFE—AOF—H—BK
31 December 2014 +—A=+—H 13,332,700 26,665
At 1 January 2015 R-ZE—HF—H—H 13,332,700 26,665
Effect on share consolidation f&ina ftz o2 (11,999,430) -
At 31 December 2015 R-EBE—RF+_A=+—H 1,333,270 26,665
(a) Issued shares (@ CEBRITRH

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed
in the special general meeting held on
16 January 2015, every ten shares of the
Company’s issued and unissued shares
with par value of HK$0.002 per share have
been consolidated into one share with
par value of HK$0.02 with effect from 19
January 2015.

All issued shares are fully paid.

BER-_ZE—RAF— A+ HEBTHERR
FriIAg@BnERARE BT 1
F-A+NBE ARAAHKRAETRE
ARE{E0.002 B T2 B BT RAREITRG &
Bt A—RRTE{E 0.02 8 T 2 f% 1D °

PIEEBRTRNHEEHR -

—ZT—HFFFH Annual Report 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERERME

21. Share capital (cont’d)

(b)

Share option scheme

The share option scheme approved by
the shareholders of the Company on
24 June 2004 (the “2004 Scheme”) has
expired on 23 June 2014. Thereafter, no
further options will be granted under the
2004 Scheme but the subsisting options
granted thereunder prior to the expiry date
will continue to be valid and exercisable
in accordance with the terms of the 2004
Scheme.

At the annual general meeting of the
May 2015, the
shareholders of the Company approved

Company held on 21

the adoption of a new share option
scheme (the “2015 Scheme”) under which
the directors of the Company may grant
options to eligible persons to subscribe for
the Company’s shares subject to the terms
and conditions as stipulated therein. Unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, the 2015
Scheme will remain valid for a period of 10
years from the date of its adoption.

No share option under the 2015 Scheme
was granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed, during the current year nor
outstanding as at 31 December 2015.

Softpower International Limited BHEBRERAF

21. Bg& (48)

(b)

BB RERT &

ARBBRRR -_FTMFE A TOAH
EZBRAE B —Z22HFHE DER
“E-NEFERAZT=HEm W& #
ERE_TSTMFAIABRLBERE B
RJER B BATAR IR — ST N ERIR
H 2 BB AR R AR B B R T T 1THE

R-E—RAFAA-+—BERITZEAAT
IRERAF RS L ANQRIRE A ETR A
BRETE (== —RFT8)) - &t
RARIEFAAEESA TR BRE -
NREARERG EEAX T —AFE
EI3RE 2GR RAGHFETRRIR © Br BITHUH
SRIEEIIN  —E—RFF e EFEMA
BAREET AR R A AN -

B 7S 4 [ 8 D 4 F (T BB R AR R =
—EE S A6 BB
TEBRER - T HF+-A=+—H
AT -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

21. Share capital (cont’d)

(b)

Share option scheme (cont’d)

The Company was authorised to grant
share options under the 2015 Scheme for
subscription of up to a total of 133,327,000
shares, representing 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date
of adoption. The directors of the Company
are authorised at their absolute discretion,
to invite any eligible participants as defined
in the Scheme, to take up options to
subscribe for shares in the Company. The
subscription price will be determined by
the Board, but shall be at least the highest
of (a) the closing price of shares as stated
in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheet on the date on which the
relevant options are deemed to be granted
and accepted in accordance with the terms
of the Scheme (“the Commencement
Date”), which must be a day on which
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange is open
for the business of dealing in securities
(“Trading Day”); (b) the average closing
price of the shares as stated in the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet for the five Trading Days immediately
preceding the Commencement Date;
and (c¢) the nominal value of the shares.
A consideration of HK$10 is payable on
acceptance of the grant of option. The
maximum number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted under the
2015 Scheme may not exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at
the date of adoption of the 2015 Scheme.
The number of shares may be refreshed
by the approval of the shareholders and
the refreshed limit of the number of shares
must not exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of the
approval of the refreshed limit.

i & M55 R M

21. Bg& (48)

(b)

BRAESTE (|)

AR ERERE-S—AFEIRLE
& LA R BT 2 & +£ 138,327,000 A% A% 15
EREMBHARAREZEITRAZ10% °
BEAAAZESFEHNBEREBFEMNEER
2HE(FERBRETS) EMNTTRBER
NElkm 2 EBRE - REEKHEESE
E - HERBIER ()R 1D R B 708 IR
RARBERETEIGRREL REMNE A
((FmBHE])) (EABBBMIMCEESE
BEEX AR E))) EEBHIT
HIRERAMIRZKTE : (b) DR B
BAMMEER AR AERBHIME
HREXRMB2 FHRTE R(c)RHE
B=FBFRZERE BEMAREZESMHER
TR AR ABIZM10B T ZRIE - BiE
“E-RFFERECERES R RN
ERHE  THEBARA-_T—AFE
EBARTEBITRAZ10% - RDEE
AR EE R - MEEH 2RHEE
FRAFHBAETH ER 2 BHAART]
BBITIRAZ10% °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERERME

21. Share capital (cont’d)

(b)

Softpower International Limited

Share option scheme (cont’d)

As a result of the share consolidation
become effective, the exercise price and
the number of consolidated shares to be
issued upon the exercise of the outstanding
options granted under the 2004 Scheme
have been adjusted in accordance with
the terms of the 2004 Scheme and Rule
17.03(13) of the Listing Rules.

Share
restated to reflect the effect of the share

information below has been

consolidation effective on 19 January 2015.

Movements in the number of share options
outstanding during the year are as follows:

21. Bg& (48)

Date of grant Date of maturity Exercise Price

o= s &8
HKS
BT

3 December 2009 2 December 2019 0.71

“ERNETCAZR “E-NErCAZR

5May 2010 4 May 2020 083

ZZ-250A5A “2-EET WA

8 June 2011 7 June 2021 0.392

“E——45ANR ZE-5RAA

Total 8%

Out of 20,300,000 (2014: 20,900,000)
17,420,000
17,100,000) share options were

outstanding share options,
(2014:
exercisable.

BHERERR A

(b)

BRAESTE (|)

RRDEFFERE  BREBEAARAREE
PUFETEIER B E M RITENERENITE
BRRITERETETZEHKRGEE
BRZETNEFFENGERE ETRBE
17.03(13) {REL LA T FH%E o

TEHNEBREHCKEIARRR -F
—HE-ATNBERRNHEFHTE

FR - RARTTEBBRIERE ZESHNT

31 December 31 December
2014 | Granted and 2015
“5-ME accepted  Exercised Lapsed ZB-1f
T-A=T-H | CRittEH BT B&% +ZA=1-H
18,300,000 - - - 18,300,000
1,600,000 - - (600,000) 1,000,000
1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
20,900,000 - - (600,000) 20,300,000

720,300,000 f% ( —=Z—PO 4 : 20,900,000)
B PR 4 - 17,420,000 — & — P £ ¢
17,100,000) f&% & AT 17{E ©




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BERRME

21. Share capital (cont’d) 21. Bg& (48)
(b) Share option scheme (cont’d) (b) EEREESTEI(E)

The estimated fair value of share options ERHBRENGTAABERE=ERX
granted is based on the Binomial model. HERAGTE -G AZEBEANETEL2HM
The significant inputs into the models are as N
follows:

8 June 2011 5 May 2010 3 December 2009
Date of grant B AR —Z—E£XANA —Z-Z£1PAEA k- 2 e
Exercise price il HK$0.392 HK$0.83 HK$0.71
Expected volatilty RERE 49% 55% 54%
Option life EREEH 10 years 10 years 10 years

10F 10%F 105

Annual risk free interest rate ERERRAZE 2.26% 2.86% 2.16%
Dividend yield ERX 2.75% 3.10% 3.58%
Fair value NELED HK$0.14 ~ HK$0.16 HK$0.26 ~ HK$0.38 HK$0.21 ~ HK$0.31
The expected volatility measured at the BIREEFEZBERIERETARZ
standard deviation is based on the historical AILL R R SRR D B E A FE L EUE -

data of the weekly share price movement of
comparable companies of the Company.
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e BEERERME

21. Share capital (cont’d)

(b)

Softpower International Limited

Share option scheme (cont’d)

U

(i)

On 3 December 2009, 59,200,000
share options were offered to
and accepted by Directors and
employees, with an exercise price of
HK$0.71 and an option period of 10
years commencing from 3 December
2009 and expiring on 2 December
2019 The
options granted to the grantees are

(both days inclusive).

vested in stages and be exercised in
the following manner:

Maximum percentage of the options exercisable

AiEZREEERE ST

20%
20%
20%
20%
20%

On 5 May 2010, 1,600,000 share
options were offered to and accepted
by a Director and an employee,
with an exercise price of HK$0.83
and an option period of 10 years
commencing from 5 May 2010 and
expiring on 4 May 2020 (both days
inclusive). The options granted to the
grantees are vested in stages and be
exercised in the following manner:

Maximum percentage of the options exercisable

TRz RRERTE AL

20%
20%
20%
20%
20%

BHERERA A

21. Bg& (48)

(b) FERRAESHE ()

U)

RZEEANFE+TZH=H  x&
EREEREEZOTE EE RN
59,200,000 7 B ikt - % EHEARE 2
TEEA0.71 BT R BRERR A+
¢ B-ZTZNFT=-—A=BHABE
T-NF+ZAZHIH(2ES
EMA) o RTHAERANERERS S
PEERSRIB - WA T A ATfE

Period for exercise of the relevant percentage of the options

TR EE 2 Lz R

3/6/2010 - 2/12/2019
3/6/2011 - 2/12/2019
3/6/2012 - 2/12/2019
3/6/2013 - 2/12/2019
3/6/2014 - 2/12/2019

(i)

RZZE—ZEFRARE AEBERE
EREE B4 I E E#E 451,600,000
MERE ZEEREZITERER
0%%E&$%%%®%+¢'m:

—EFRARARARE-ZS=_ZF
EHEE”W@%%%WM°&%
EEARNBRESDEBRES - Wik
AR =471

Period for exercise of the relevant percentage of the options

fTEEmMmEREE S Lz MR

5/11/2010 - 4/5/2020
5/11/2011 - 4/5/2020
5/11/2012 - 4/5/2020
5/11/2013 - 4/5/2020
5/11/2014 - 4/5/2020



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

21. Share capital (cont’d)

(b) Share option scheme (cont’d)

(i)

On 8 June 2011, 1,000,000 share
options were offered to and accepted
by a Director, with an exercise price
of HK$0.392 and an option period of
10 years commencing from 8 June
2011 and expiring on 7 June 2021
(both days inclusive). The options
granted to the grantees are vested
in stages and be exercised in the
following manner:

Maximum percentage of the options exercisable

ATRZRREREE AL

20%
20%
20%
20%
20%

Vesting of certain options granted to certain

employees are subject to achievement of profit

target.

21. Bg& (48)

& M55 R

(b) EBRRFESHE (&)

(i)

RZT——FXANR  A&£EER
—EEZHIE EE 491,000,000
MEBRE ZZEREZTEER
0.392 8L R EREHR AT F © /B
—E——F X AN\BRABE=_ZT=—
FARAALRIBA(BREEEMA) - &
FTERBEANBREGHORERSEE - 1
RATARATE -

Period for exercise of the relevant percentage of the options

fTEEmmREE S Lz RR

8/12/2011 - 7/6/2021
8/12/2012 - 7/6/2021
8/12/2013 - 7/6/2021
8/12/2014 - 7/6/2021
8/12/2015 - 7/6/2021

BYaTREZE THBREREZRENBRITA
FETERES -

—ZT—HFFFHK Annual Report 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERERME

22. Reserves

At1 January 2014
Proft for the year
Currency translation
diferences
Share based payment
Actuarialloss on post-
employment benefit
Obligations, net of tax
Release of exchange
resenve Upon disposal
of a subsidlary
Transfer upon lapse
of share options

At 31 December 2014
and 1 January 2015

Profitfor the year
Currency translation
differences
Share based payment
Actuarial loss on post-
employment benefit
obligations, net of tax
Transfer upon lapse
of share options

At 31 December 2015

RZE-mE-A-A
ERRR
EhaEzE

IR AERANT
BB ERY
FEER
HRH#E
HEHELT
ZEifRZ0R

REREAIER

R-E-IE
t-A=t-BR
“5-1f-f-H

EEaH

EHAEES

IR ARRANR
BRIKENER
WRERR
AR
RERENER

R-2-1%
+-A=t-H

22, fki#
Share
Capital Merger based
Share reserve reserve Statutory Other ~ Exchange payment Retained

premium (note (i) (note (ii) reserve reserve reserve reserve eamings Total

DL

B5hE AfER BERD #E

RiaR (W ) (M ) HERH Rt EREH fIRGM i) L]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
Thr Thm ThL Thr Thn ThR Thn ThR ThR
126,618 34115 3,700 P 930 2,260 8,784 128126 304,563
- - - - - - - 21,729 2,729
B} . - - = (158) - = (1)
- = = - = - 340 - 340
- - - - (1) - - - (11)
i} . - - = (1.651) - = (1.651)
_ - - = - - (3,786) 3,786 =
126,618 34,115 3,700 2% 519 457 5,338 153,641 324,412
- - - - - - - 34,023 34,023
- - - - - 246 - - 246
- - - - - - 120 - 120
- - - - (340) - - - (340)
- - - - - - (192) 192 -
126,618 34,115 3,700 2% 179 703 5,266 187,856 358,461

Softpower International Limited BHEBERAF
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22. Reserves (cont’d)

23.

& M55 R

22, il (&)

Notes: i

)  The capital reserve of the Group arose from () NEEE 2 B AR RIR R — MU S U — R B
acquisition of the remaining interests in a BRAB A TR - BRGRIEMBEAFEER
subsidiary in 1999. The balance represents BEZAREBHEXNMKEZESE -
the excess of the fair value attributable to the
net assets and liabilities acquired over the
consideration paid.

(i)  The merger reserve of the Group arising from iy AEEREBEZEAEMELEZEHFREE  THZBRE
the Group reorganisation is determined by the SEEHBAZHEBE R ARDAELERIESET
difference between the nominal value of shares of AR ERDEMEME 2 ZFEEE °
the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group
reorganisation and the nominal value of the
Company'’s shares deemed to have been issued.

Borrowings 23. faR

2015 2014
—E-RF —ET—mEF
HK$’000 HK$’'000

Current mE FHET FA&T

Trust receipt loans, secured (note (i) BHEETEUBARE SR (FIEE))) 61,570 69,170

Trust receipt loans, unsecured IR SR E R 10,309 6,783

Bank overdrafts (Note 20) (note (i) R17E > (FsE20) (FIEE () 1,164 =

73,043 75,953

Notes:

The carrying amounts of the trust receipt loans
and bank overdrafts approximate their fair values.
As at 31 December 2015, the banking facilities
were secured by corporate guarantees and
bank deposits of approximately HK$61,000,000
(2014: HK$68,699,000).

ERRBEEREBRTEY 2 FASEAFEAR
ERE R=ZT—RAF+=-A=+—08 Ri78k
& B AER R RITF 461,000,000 % 7T (=
T—PU4F : 68,699,000 7T ) VEHKIE -

—ZT—HFFFHK Annual Report 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERERME

23. Borrowings (cont’

Notes: (cont’d)

d)

(i) The borrowings are denominated in the following

currencies:

Hong Kong dollars

BT

@iy The effective interest rates (per annum) of bank
borrowings at the financial reporting date are as

follows:

Trust receipt loans and

bank overdrafts

24. Deferred taxation

Deferred tax liabilities to

be settled after 12 months

EREUIRE R
FARITEX

23. &8 (i)

BieE : (A&

(i) EEATIEEIE :

2015
—E—hEF
HK$’000
FET

73,043

2014
—Z—uF
HK$’000
FHT

75,953

(i) REMBRER  RITEEZERERELT

24, BEERIF

R+ —EAREEZ

EREFIARR

Deferred tax is calculated in full on temporary

differences under the liability method using tax
rates of the relevant subsidiaries applicable to the
period when the asset is expected to be realised
or the liability to be settled, based on tax rates
that have been substantively enacted by the

financial reporting date.

Softpower International Limited

BHERERR A

2015
1%
%

2.51

2015
~Z—1F
HK$°000
FERT

(137)

2014
—Z—uF
%

2.41

2014
—E-mF
HK$'000
T

(323)

EERBERAEBEEINABNBAREREESR
RREEEECHRMER 2B R (KU BHRE
AERmEERM) (E2 8B -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The movement in deferred tax assets and
liabilities during the year, without taking into
consideration the offsetting of balances within the

same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

i & M55 R M

24. Deferred taxation (cont’d) 24, RIERIA ()
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when BB AR G RTIEE EEA BB E
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current B MELEHRBEEMNELERIBEABES KR —
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when ISR - —KERFLA 75k TR A e SR
the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to NABERBBNFREE A BEEHIEE
income tax levied by the same taxation authority EBRIERTE B (EE IR o
on either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.
The net movement on the deferred tax account is EEFIBAR B < SB)FREMT ¢
as follows:
2015 2014
—Z=—hF —E—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE&T T
At 1 January R—A—A (323) (289)
Credited/(charged) to
income statement (Note 10) Tz RPE A (F08R) (MHEE10) 119 (115)
Credited to equity =P ETA 67 81
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 (137) (323)

BEEBIREENBBERFRN 2 EE CRET RRA
R RS2 SE8R) 20T

Deferred tax assets REBIEEE
Tax losses
kT o]
HK$’000
TF#ET
At 1 January 2014 and 2015 RZZE—MFEER=_F—HF—H—H -
Credited to income statement EWERETA 182
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RAF+ZA=+—H 182

—ZT—HFFFH Annual Report 2015
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24. Deferred taxation (cont’d)

Deferred tax liabilities

At 1 January 2014 R-ZE-mFE—F—H
Charged to income statement TR Mk
Charged to equity TEREE R IR

At 31 December 2014 and

1 January 2015 —Z-AF—H—H
Charged to income statement ez el
Credited to equity FERERRETA

At 31 December 2015

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for
tax losses carried forward to the extent that the
realisation of the related tax benefit through the
future taxable profits is probable. The Group
did not recognise deferred income tax assets
of HK$7,785,000 (2014: HK$8,474,000) in
respect of accumulated tax losses amounting
to HK$41,887,000 (2014: HK$47,449,000)
as at 31 December 2015, that can be carried
forward against future taxable income. As
at 31 December 2015, the accumulated tax
losses amounting to HK$10,283,000 (2014:
HK$7,589,000) will be expired in five years. There
is no expiry period for the other tax losses.

Softpower International Limited BHEBRERAF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERERME

24, EFEMRIA ()

R-ZE—MF+-A=+—HK

RZE—RF+-A=+—H

EEHBEEE
Remeasurement
gain of
Accelerated post-employment
tax depreciation benefit obligations Total
BER:
R g
MERERE EMERE o]
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TET TET TET
(105) (184) (289)
(115) = (115)
- 81 81
(220) (103) (323)
(63) - (63)
- 67 67
(283) (36) (319)

RIEFTSIRIE A & T A FE AR B M s Al B iR R
2 P SR A i M) 2 R T B AT AS B 2 B TR B R ME
R REBU RS - E—HEF+-_A=+—
H Al &8 DA S R R E R B A 2 RET RIS
841,887,000 7T (= F — I 4F : 47,449,000 /%8
TL) HERIEIE PSR IE B E 7,785,000/ L (=&
—PO4F : 8,474,000/87L) - R=ZZE—RAF+=A
=+—HB ' ZFR2FHIBEEE 10,283,000 7T
(ZZ—M4 : 7,589,000/870) ' HRAFAZT
By o HhFRIB/E 8N m AR o




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

25. Trade and other payables

Trade payables B S IR
Accrued expenses and TRIRERAK
other payables (note) E b pE Rk (FisE)

Notes:

Included in other payables of the Group was a
provision for a customer claim of HK$3,694,000 (2014:
HK$3,694,000) made for a project in Hong Kong in
prior years. During the year, management reassessed
the circumstances and considered that the amount
of provision made as at 31 December 2015 remains
adequate but not excessive.

The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade
payables, based on the invoice date, is as
follows:

Within 80 days 30 KA
31 to 60 days 31 RE60XK
61 to 90 days 61 XZE 90K
Over 90 days B3890 X

i & M55 R M

25. BHRHEMEMNREA

2015 2014
—2-1F —E-mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#x TAT
26,145 32,572
40,496 40,592
66,641 73,164

G

BREREAEENEMENKT  RBEFE  ANEE
— TN EBBRIAE B {EH 3,694,000 T ( —Z T — P4 :
3,694,000 L) B FHERE RAFEAN - B
BEFTERIERRAEZEHER=Z—AF+=A
=t+—BINRHINRTBES -

AEBEBZERMNRIBENRERREZBHAS T
T

2015 2014
—E—LF —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT T
22,257 28,768
2,491 856
1,362 715

35 2,233

26.145 32,572

—ZT—HFFFH Annual Report 2015
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e M B H R

25. Trade and other payables (cont’d)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and

25. BHRHEMEMREA (&)

AREE 2B 5 MEAMENFKAZERRSEIZAT

other payables are denominated in the following EHEHE -
currencies:
2015 2014
—E—-hF —EF—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAIT
Hong Kong dollars BT 42,258 46,462
Usb ETT 17,006 19,328
RMB AR 5,702 5,361
EURO ERIT 209 -
Others HAb 1,466 2,013
66,641 73,164
26. Commitments 26. 7&iE
(@) Capital commitments (a) EBEXBX
Capital expenditure contracted for at the MNEKRERITARIEBNREENE AR
end of the year but not yet incurred is as FORNE
follows:
2015 2014
—EZ—hF —EF—gF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAIT
Capital expenditure in respect of the  BAEBE /TE ] KVERERE
acquisition of motor vehicles WIS IRER AR
contracted for but not provided in &R
the consolidated financial statements 1,300 -

146 Softpower International Limited 581 Bl ERA




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BERRME

26. Commitments (cont’d) 26. #*&ifE (&)
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) REHERIE
2015 2014
—ZE—hF —EF—F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THT FAT
Land and buildings T RIEF
Not later than one year THA—F 18,596 18,280
Later than one year and BRA—FENERARF
not later than five years 14,214 27,871
32,810 46,151
Equipment and motor vehicles & M58
Not later than one year BB —F 590 598
Later than one year and BR—FENEART
not later than five years 652 1,105
1,242 1,703
34,052 47,854
The lease terms are between one to five years, HEMANT—Z20F  TENHESHNEER
and the majority of lease agreements are EmBIETHEBEY -

renewable at the end of the lease period at
market rate.

—ZT—HFFFH Annual Report 2015
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fm e M B HRRME

27. Notes to the consolidated statement

of cash flows

(@) Cash flows from operations

Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment
LLoss/(Gain) on disposal of
property, plant and
equipment, net (note)
Interest income
Interest expense
Provision for impairment of
trade and other receivables
Provision for impairment of
inventories
Fair value losses on financial
assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Dividend income on financial
assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Share based payment
LLoss on disposal of a subsidiary
Changes in working capital:
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories
Decrease/(Increase) in trade and
other receivables
Increase in financial assets at
fair value through profit or
loss
(Decrease)/Increase in trade
and other payables

Net cash generated
from operations

Softpower International Limited BHEBERAF

(a) REXBHRBZRERE

WA A
B NIIEEAR
0E - BELREONE

HEYR - BER&ELZ

B (Wes) F8 (BT
FMEHA
FEXH

B 5 R EMRUGRRER

FERERRE

BAREEARRLZ
EREENQAEEER

BARBEFABSECSREE
HOBLE A

BARSAR 5 EERE A 15 2R
HE—RMBARKEE
%gﬁﬁﬁﬁi
& (),
%’%&ﬁﬂﬂﬁl& R,/ (15 10)

BRRBEFABRREZ
SRE AR

B 5 RAMBARORD),1Em

REXBHEREFR

27. IFEHeRERME

2015 2014
—E—-h% — g4
HK$000 HK$'000
THET FAT
39,585 26,091
2,178 1,409
127 87)
(1,282) (1,267)
1,326 1,586
860 43
1,316 1,078

94 =

(49) =

120 340

- 871
(21,956) 3,640
17,200 (11,483)
(1,766) -
(6,379) 18,469
31,374 40,690




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BERRME

27. Notes to the consolidated statement 27. FERERERMEE)
of cash flows (cont’d)

(a) Cash flows from operations (cont’d) () REXBFEZHEERE ()
Note: Proceeds from disposal of property, plant et - HEDE  BERREZFTEFESEE :
and equipment comprises:

2015 2014

—Z-5F —ZE—F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET T

Net book amount BRESHE 405 3

(Loss)/gain on disposal HEZ (Ei18),/ et (127) 87

Proceeds from disposal B E B IE 278 90
Represented by: R¥&:

Cash Re 278 90

—Z—RFFHK Annual Report 2015 149
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e M B H R

27. Notes to the consolidated statement

of cash flows (cont’d)

(b) Disposal of a subsidiary

(b)

Details of disposal of a subsidiary as

follows:

Net assets disposed
Property, plant and equipment
Trade and other receivables
Inventories
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other payables

Net assets
Exchange reserve released
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary

Satisfied by:
Cash received
Cash consideration receivable

Analysis of net cash inflow in respect
of disposal of a subsidiary:
Cash received
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of

Net cash inflow in respect of
disposal of a subsidiary

Softpower International Limited BHEBRERAF

EHEFEE
ER TR E
B9 REMEYR
{31
ReRReEEY
B9 REMENTR

FEE
A
HE—RRELRNER

XA
EWRE
REHBRER

BRHE—RNBARZ
BERAFEDN -
EWES

BHEZRERALEEY

BRHLE—RNBARZ
BERAFE

27. REBRKNERMEGE)

HE—FENEAF
HE— B A BRI &N T

2015
~2-if
HK$000
TR

2014

—F-mF

HK$'000
TAT

2,734
1,264
9,371

1,583
(5,070)

9,882
(1,651)
(871)

7,360

2,745
4,615

4,615

2,745
(1,583)

4,615

1,162




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

28. Related party transactions

(a)

(b)

Key management compensation

Salaries and other short term
employee benefits

Pension costs — defined
contribution plans

Share based payment

Rental payment to a related party

Rental paid to a related

(Bf=E)

company (note)

Note:

The Group paid rental of a motor vehicle and
licence to a company controlled by Mr. Lai
Guanglin, the Chairman and executive director
of the Company, for a fixed sum of RMB12,000
(equal to HK$15,000) per month as agreed by
both parties. This is also a connected transaction
which is exempted under Rule 14A.76 of the
Listing Rules.

i & M55 R M

28. HEALE S

(a)

FekHEMmEHEEREN

BIARERAN — ERHEKEE

VARR 17 A EEHE 2 53K

(b)

XNBEE—REERT

TESHE A SR
2015 2014
—E—hEF —EF—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
18,573 17,030
122 116
120 294
18,815 17,440
EEIEA T AHHWEE
2015 2014
—EZ—hF —T U4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
180 —
BitsE

AEERBERMERAEER —HBEARRE
EFHNITEE Lai Guanglin FcAE1EHIHI A 7S
HERBERNST A EEE M 12,000 ARE (5K
15,0007/7T) © IR 5 INARIR LR R 14A.76
IEMESHRENEERS -

—ZT—HFFFH Annual Report 2015
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e M B HRRME

29. Statement of financial position and

reserve movement of the Company

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets

Prepayments and other receivables
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Cash and bank balances

Total assets

EQUITY
Equity holders
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities

Other payables
Amounts due to subsidiaries

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities
Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

The statement of financial position of the
Company was approved by the board of

HE
FREEE
iSEIIEUNCIE E=

L E R E

BT R B LA UK RO
JRE W B /B A B K IR

B e RIRITHEER

HeE

e
BREFEA
LN
i

e §

R

REAR

H At FEAS 500R
ANLRIEPNCIE/
#HaR
HESRAR
B EERE

HRERRDRR

Directors on 30 March 2016 and was signed on

its behalf:

Lai Guanglin
Director 2%

152 Softpower International Limited 58 1Bl ER A

Note
B &E

29. ERFMBRRARR EIREE

As at 31 December

»+=—B=+—8
2015 2014
—E-RF —T—mEF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHET
23 8
90,268 90,155
90,291 90,163
725 637
29,550 23,466
3,013 1,449
33,288 25,552
123,579 115,715
26,665 26,665
78,040 70,890
104,705 97,555
3,311 2,527
15,563 15,633
18,874 18,160
123,579 115,715
14,414 7,392
104,705 97,555

Yu Ben Ansheng Si R4

Director 2%

ARANBBANRERETEN T —R"F=
A=1R#tkx  ARKEFSHRE:



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29. Statement of financial position and
reserve movement of the Company

(con

Notes:

0

t'd)

Reserve movement of the Company

At 1 January 2014 RZE—ME—H—H
Profit for the year FERH

Share based payment PARRD AR RN
Transfer upon lapse of E R R pE R

share options

At 31 December 2014 and

1 January 2015 k=—Z-HF—A—H
Profit for the year FEER
Share based payment PARRD AR AR
Transfer upon lapse of E R R R

share options

At 31 December 2015

The contributed surplus of the Company
represents the difference between the nominal
value of the shares issued by the Company in
exchange for all the issued ordinary shares of
World Trade Bun Kee (BVI) Ltd. and the value
of net assets of the underlying subsidiaries
acquired by the Company in 2000. Under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus is distributable to the
shareholders, subject to a solvency test. At
the Group level, the contributed surplus is
reclassified into its component of reserves of the
underlying subsidiaries.

& M B R

29. ERFMBRRRR EIREE (1)

B

0

ARRFEZES

Contributed Share based

RZE-—NF+-A=1+—H

R-ZE-hF+_A=1+—H

Share surplus payment Accumulated

premium (note) reserve deficits Total
WARR LRihAER

BiRaR (PHeE)  EOfERGEGE RitEiR #a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
126,618 86,759 8,784 (153,530 68,631
- - - 1,919 1,919
— — 340 — 340
- - (3,786) 3,786 -
126,618 86,759 5,338 (147,825) 70,890
- - - 7,030 7,030
- - 120 - 120
- - (192) 192 -
126,618 86,759 5,266 (140,603) 78,040

KRR ZHANBERTIIEAR R A A EWorld
Trade Bun Kee (BVI) Ltd. 2 EBE 217 /M M 2%
TZBROEESERNARFFUEEERBARRZ
TETF 2 AEFEMERCERE - REERE
—NN\—FREE(EEE]) - BABRKRERESR
AENERBEF AR ZERT Aok TR
R EAKECERA L SARREFHELE
AR A Rl 2 AR S

—ZT—HFFFH Annual Report 2015
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e M B HRRME

30. Benefits and interests of directors
(disclosures required by section
383 of the Hong Kong Companies

30. EEMARNELR (REFE(OTEH)
(58622 ) EIBIER( AT (IBREEF
SEHE) ARG (B622GE) RER(L™

Ordinance (Cap. 622), Companies BADAHREMEHAMESE)
(Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation
(Cap. 622G) and HK Listing Rules)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s () EBRTHREARM:S
emoluments
The remuneration of each director and BEERTHRBEREE T —NFER=
the chief executive for the year ended 31 E—hAFFT+ZA=T—HBLEFENHSE
December 2014 and 2015 is set out below: AR
Forthe year ended 31 December 2015
§ECS-TETIRST-ALER
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as a director, whether of the Company or ts subsidiary undertaking
KRER (FERELTUEMBLTLR RURRAR AU SHE
Emoluments paid
or receivable
inrespect
of director's
other senvice in
connection with
Remunerations  the management
Employers  paidorreceivable  of the affairs of
Estimated money  contributions to a in respect of the Company
Discretionary Housing value of other  retirementbenefit  accepting officeas  orits subsidiary
Fees Salary bonuses allowance  benefts (note (i) scheme director undertaking Total
HERKLTE
EHRLARRN
HERREES  SHRMANE
EHURHREHRE SEEHAR  -RARMEE  SRAAIM
fig it Bt RERE  RE(WEm) bj it i) b Bhsme &
HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK§000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK§ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000
Name of Director ESltE T T TR T T TR T T Tin
L Guangin Lai Guengin 3,268 mn - 2367 - 5907
Yo Ben Ansheng rote ) SR () 2005 49 - 10 18 204
LaiFuin #ER - 1542 50 - 19 18 20
UKean Seng £ 200 - - - - 200
Wong Yee Shuen, Wison BIE 20 0
Chen Wei Wen REX 150 150
Yangli ] 20 1 n
750 7105 1,293 - 2654 % 1185

Softpower International Limited &5 EIRER2AF]




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BERERME

30. Benefits and interests of directors 30. EEMNFISNER (REFE(LTEH)
(disclosures required by section (5E622E ) E383ER(LAF(HBEET
383 of the Hong Kong Companies SEE)NG) (F622GE ) REB(LT
Ordinance (Cap. 622), Companies JRADPREMEHBESE)(8)

(Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation
(Cap. 622G) and HK Listing Rules)
(cont’d)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s () ESRTHAZMS (&)
emoluments (cont’d)

Forthe year ended 31 December 2014
BE-T-MEt-A=t-ALER
Emolumens paid or receivabl nrespect of a person's sendces as a director, whether ofthe Company or s subsidary undertaking
[eBES (TERAATIEMRAR S RERRAR RN HE

Emoluments paid or

Teceveble nrespect

of director's other

senice n comnecton

vith the management

Employer's Remuneratons of he afars of

Estmatecmongy ~ conirbutionstoa paid orreceivablein e Company

Discreionary Housing vagofofer  refrement beneft  respectof accepting orfs Subsidary
Fegs Sdary bonuses alowance — beefts (note (i) scheme offce &s director undertaking Totd

RERRAAIA

L0 REETEE  WENANGHER

[EEREE FERGRH B UERE
(i3 it Bea REH (ki) R Blome  ximEiame 4z
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HiS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HiS 000 Hi000
Name of Diector E2i2 Tin Thn Tin TAn Thn Tin Thn Tin Thn
L Guangn Lai Guengin = 3202 mn = 1744 - = = 5208
Y Ben Ansheng [note ) AFE () - 2084 Rl - 10 17 - - 289
LaiFuln #ER - 1486 R - 168 1l - - 199
UKean Seng £ 0 - - - 17 - - - a7
Toang Wat Yio ate ) BEZ () 13 - - - 5 - - - 18
Wong Yee Shuen, Wison Bl m - - - 6 - - - 10
Chen Wei Wen REX 130 - - - 14 - - - 164
Yangli ] 0 - - - 16 - - - 26
882 0 %7 - 215 U - - 11084
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e M B HRRME

30. Benefits and interests of directors 30. EEMTSNER (RBEFB(LFIER)
(5622 )EIBIER(AFTI(HBEEST
RFH)RH) (F622GE)REFH(ET
HADBREMEHAOWEESE) (&)

(disclosures required by section
383 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), Companies
(Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation
(Cap. 622G) and HK Listing Rules)
(cont’d)

(@) Directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments (cont’d)

Notes:

(i) Yu Ben Ansheng is the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company.

(ii) Re-designated from executive director
to non-executive director on 15 February

2013 and resigned on 15 November 2014.

(iii) Other benefits include share option and
other allowance.

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits
None of the directors received or will
receive any retirement benefits during the
year (2014: Nil).

(c) Directors’ termination benefits
None of the directors received or will

receive any termination benefits during the
year (2014: Nil).

156 Softpower International Limited 58 1Bl ER A

()

(b)

(c)

ESRTRARHE (&)

W

() AIRERARFRWEFERTE

i) RZB-—=F"_F+HAANTEFHRE
RIFATEE IR _ZT—NWFE+—A
THRBHE -

(i) EAbARA BT Ak R E )RR o

ESHRAEF
FR - BEESEIRBUERAREFR (=
T E) o
ESHNRLEER

FA - MEESE HHERK IEEERS
BA(ZF—mF : &)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30. Benefits and interests of directors
(disclosures required by section
383 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), Companies
(Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation
(Cap. 622G) and HK Listing Rules)
(cont’d)

(d)

(e)

Consideration provided to third parties
for making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2015,
the Company did not pay consideration
to any third parties for making available
directors’ services (2014: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

During the year ended 31 December 2015,
there is no loans, quasi-loans and other
dealing arrangements in favour of the
directors, or controlled bodies corporate
by and connected entities of such directors
(2014: Nil).

& M B R

30. EEMARNELR (REFE(OTEH)
(58622 ) EIBIER( AT (IBREEF
SEHE) RO (B622GE) RER(L™
AR TE M 4 tHAY K S ) (&)

(d)

(e)

MERHUESREMEASE=FRHANEE

R-IZE—1F AEELREAENES
RBMXNE=7TOEE(-T—MF:
&) e

MES ZRETEFEFNEARRR
ZESNHEIREHNER  EEX
MEMRZHER

R-ZE—hF HENESE BEF2XE
HEEREEERARBAZENR  £E
REHMR S (ZT—TF : &) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERERME

30. Benefits and interests of directors

31.

(disclosures required by section
383 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), Companies
(Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation
(Cap. 622G) and HK Listing Rules)
(cont’d)

() Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or
contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements
and contracts in relation to the Company’s
business to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year
(2014: Nil).

Ultimate holding company

The Directors of the Company consider
Singapore Zhongxin Investment Company
Limited (“Singapore Zhongxin”),
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, as

a company

being the ultimate holding company. Singapore
Zhongxin is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr.
Lai Guanglin, a director of the Company, who is
considered to be the ultimate controlling party.

Softpower International Limited BHEBERAF

30. EEMARNELR (REFE(OTEH)

31.

(58622 ) EIBIER( AT (IBREEF
SEHE) ARG (B622GE) RER(L™
AR TE M 4 tHAY K S ) (&)

() ESEXRZ RFERESENEAES

VEEBARREHEMARAESES—
TEARRBEREF (TmEZRXEE)
BEAE A (RAFFRINFAEME
BMEARS  RHREH(ZT—OF
&)

BRERLAT

RRRESFRAR ERBEBRESTMAKL
Z Singapore Zhongxin Investment Company
Limited ([ Singapore Zhongxin]) AfARIER A
@] ° Singapore Zhongxin HZANA & 2 & ELai
Guanglint42E REmEE - HERAKKE
HIA o



subsidiaries

Name

4

Incorporated and operating
in Hong Kong
EEBRTREE

Bun Keg (International) Limited

Wi (BR) BRAA

Hamerwind Logistic Company
Limited
BREMTERAR

Established and operating
in Macao
RPN T REE

Bun Kee Building Material and
Equipment (Macao) Co., Ltd.
WM ki (RFT) BR AR

32. Particulars of the principal

Principal Activities

IERE

Trading of construction materials,
mainly pipes and fittings
in Hong Kong
REANSREMH (FEREE
REH)ZES

Provision of warehousing and
logistic services in Hong Kong
REBRER T RIRRT

Trading of construction materials,
mainly pipes and fittings in Macao

REFIESRENR (T ERER
RE#)2B5

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& M B R

32. ¥EMBLTEH

Particulars of
issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital
BETRBE
EF/EMEs

100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
3,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares of HK$1 each
100 REREE BT LRk
3,000,000 R BREME 17ETTL
ERFEETR

800 ordinary shares of HK$100 each

800 B EE 100587t LAk

MOP50,000

50,0002

Percentage
aalt

Attributable to Held by
the Group subsidiaries
FREEGE  WELRRE
100 100
100 100
100 100

—ZT—HFFFH Annual Report 2015
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Five-Year Financial Summary

AFEHMEERE

Results

Revenue

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year from
continuing operations

Loss for the year from
discontinued operations

Seamless steel pipes

Loss for the year from
discontinued operations

Profit for the year

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Assets and liabilities

Total assets
Total liabilities

Total equity

Softpower International Limited

WA

R
BB

SERERT
2EH

RIEEERK
ZEERR

BRHT

RIEEERK
LEEER

FREN
Fefh -

ARBIBRHERBA
Sl 5o

RERAR

O

Bl
(S5

BHERERA A

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
—T——F —T——F “T=F —TF ZZ-1F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TET TET TET THT THT
438,395 455,127 504,143 553,845 611,534
15,664 16,954 20,258 26,001 39,585
2,791) (3,254) (3,597) (4,362) (5,562)
12,873 13,700 16,661 21,729 34,023
(148) = = - -
(148) = = - -
12,725 13,700 16,661 21,729 34,023
13,280 13,700 16,661 21,729 34,023
(555) = = - -
12,725 13,700 16,661 21,729 34,023
422,988 435,681 491,950 505,577 531,414
(125,531) (123,055) (160,722) (154,500) (146,288)
297,457 312,626 331,228 351,077 385,126




7w BB AR A A
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